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OUR
VISION
Leadership through Innovation

OUR
MISSION
We will target niche markets that
appreciate our innovative design.
Stress on continuous improvement
and human capital development, thus
satisfying all our stakeholders.

FOSTERING GLOBAL REACH
THROUGH LOCAL CREATIVITY
The surrealistic imagery visually illustrates the expanding prominence of
Eurospan’s furniture and presence on a global scale. The theme also serves
to affirm the pride Eurospan takes in its local team, whose creativity has
been pivotal in fostering its growth and success.
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GROUP STRUCTURE

Eurospan Holdings Berhad was incorporated in Malaysia on 19 July 1995 under the Companies Act 1965 as a
public limited company. It has been listed on the Main Market of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad since 10 July
2000. The Company is an investment holding company and its wholly-owned subsidiary companies are Eurospan
Furniture Sdn. Bhd., Dynaspan Furniture Sdn. Bhd., Euroswood Furniture Sdn. Bhd. and Dynaword Sdn. Bhd.

EUROSPAN HOLDINGS BERHAD (351927-M)
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

100%
EUROSPAN FURNITURE

SDN BHD (177650-M)

MANUFACTURING &
TRADING OF
FURNITURE &

WOOD-BASED
PRODUCTS

100%
DYNASPAN FURNITURE

SDN BHD (231752-D)

MANUFACTURING
OF FURNITURE &
WOOD-BASED

PRODUCTS

100%
EUROSWOOD FURNITURE

SDN BHD (372489-W)

INVESTMENT
HOLDING

100%
DYNAWORD

SDN BHD (373749-H)

INVESTMENT
HOLDING
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CHAIRMAN’S MESSAGE
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On behalf of the Board of Directors, this is the Annual Report and Accounts for Eurospan Holdings Berhad and
its subsidiaries (“the Gourp”) for the financial year ended 31 May 2010.

The financial year reviewed here was a challenging one in light of the global economic and financial crisis.

GROUP RESULTS

The recent global economic and financial crisis has significantly given an adverse impact on the business confidence
and household sentiments. The global slowdown has in turn affected the result of the Group this year. The Group
managed to achieve commendable revenue of RM62.13 million as compared to previous year’s recorded revenue
of RM62.80 million.

The Group’s profit before tax for the financial year ended 31 May 2010 was RM204,364 as compared to RM3,936,780
in the previous year. The decrease was mainly due to worldwide economic meltdown, the overall increase in the
raw material cost and operating expenses and continued appreciation of the Ringgit Malaysia against the US Dollar.

SHAREHOLDERS DIVIDEND

The Board is pleased to recommend a final single tier dividend of 8 sen per ordinary share for the financial year
ended 31 May 2010 for the shareholders’ approval at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting. This proposed
dividend if payable in respect of all outstanding ordinary shares in issue as at 31 May 2010 will involve a cash
payment of RM3,237,000.

FUTURE PROSPECTS

The global economy has been showing progressively strong signs of recovery. It is against this economic backdrop
that the Group expects to be profitable for the financial year ending 31 May 2011 barring any unforeseen
circumstances. The main downside at this point in time is the continued strengthening of the Ringgit Malaysia
against the US Dollar will have a negative impact to the Group’s earnings as the Group’s revenue is 100% from
exports sales and denominated in the USD currency.

Going forward, we on our part will continue to be vigilant of the market changes and refine our business strategies
and incorporate measures that will allow us to focus on our core strengths. Every effort would be made to
mitigate risks and further increase operational efficiency in positioning our core business for growth opportunities
while creating and enhancing shareholder’s value.

We look forward to continuous support from all our stakeholders as we pursue our course in turning this Group
back into better profitability. With your support, the Group will overcome this difficult period and post an improved
performance in the next financial year.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT AND APPRECIATION

On behalf of my colleagues on the Board, I wish to express my sincere appreciation to all of our employees who
has remained loyal and dedicated to the Group and continue to persevere throughout the year in review. In
particular, I would like to extend the Board’s appreciation to the Management Team for their dedication and
determination to steer the Group out of its financial difficulties.

My deepest appreciation also goes to my fellow Board members who have been instrumental in providing guidance
and valuable insights to the Management throughout the year.

To our business associates, partners and shareholders, we sincerely thank you for your unwavering confidence
and continued support in seeing us through one of the most challenging period of our business. We have built
our business strategies with you in mind and will continue building value for shareholders and customers moving
forward.
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CHAIRMAN’S MESSAGE (CONTINUED)

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT AND APPRECIATION (Continued)

I am confident that with your continuing support in the exciting times ahead, we shall succeed in our concerted
effort to return the Group to better profit and grow ourselves to be the leading furniture manufacturer.

Guan Kok Beng
Chairman
Date: 1 October 2010
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Guan Kok Beng
Chairman & Managing Director

Mr. Guan Kok Beng, a Malaysian Citizen, aged 58, was appointed as a Director and Managing Director of the
Company on 30 April 2000. On 19 May 2000 he was appointed as the Chairman of the Board of Directors. With
over 30 years of experience in the furniture industry, he is responsible for strategic business development, providing
direction and coordinating the overall marketing and production operations of the Group. He was the President
of the Penang Furniture Manufacturers and Dealers Association (“PFMDA”) from 1992 to 1995 and was subsequently
appointed as Advisor since 1996. He was also a committee member of the Malaysian Furniture Industry Council
from 1992 to 1995.

He serves as a member of the Remuneration Committee. His brothers, Mr. Guan Kim Heng and Mr. Guan Kim
Loong and his sons, Mr. Guan Shaw Kee and Mr. Guan Shaw Yin, are also members of the Board. He is a major
shareholder of TBHL Holdings Sdn Bhd, which is a major shareholder of Eurospan.

Guan Shaw Kee
Executive Director

Mr. Guan Shaw Kee, a Malaysian Citizen, aged 34, was appointed as an Executive Director of the Company on 28
April 2008 to be primarily involved in sales and marketing and research and development of the Group. He obtained
his diploma in Computing & Information Technology from Alexander Institute of Technology in Australia and joined
Eurospan since 2002.

His father, Mr. Guan Kok Beng, his uncles, Mr. Guan Kim Heng and Mr. Guan Kim Loong and his brother Mr. Guan
Shaw Yin, are also members of the Board.

Guan Shaw Yin
Executive Director

Mr. Guan Shaw Yin, a Malaysian Citizen, aged 32, was appointed as an Executive Director of the Company on 28
April 2008 to be primarily involved in purchasing, stores, production planning, finance and to provide direction
for corporate planning functions of the Group. He holds a bachelor degree in Business Administration from
Northwood University, USA. He was an Assistant Auditor in 2003. He then joined a metal works factory in 2005
as a Sales Executive and joined Eurospan since 2006.

He serves as a member of the ESOS Committee. His father, Mr. Guan Kok Beng, his uncles, Mr. Guan Kim Heng
and Mr. Guan Kim Loong and his brother Mr. Guan Shaw Kee, are also members of the Board.

Guan Kim Heng
Non-Independent Non-Executive Director

Mr. Guan Kim Heng, a Malaysian Citizen, aged 52, was appointed as an Executive Director of the Company on
30 April 2000. On 19 June 2008, he was re-designated to Non-Executive Director. Prior to this, he was primarily
involved in corporate planning, providing direction and overseeing the financial, human resources and administrative
functions of the Group.

He serves as a member of the Audit Committee. His brothers, Mr. Guan Kok Beng and Mr. Guan Kim Loong, his
nephews, Mr. Guan Shaw Kee and Mr. Guan Shaw Yin, are also members of the Board. He is a major shareholder
of TBHL Holdings Sdn Bhd, which is a major shareholder of Eurospan.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

Guan Kim Loong
Non-Independent Non-Executive Director

Mr. Guan Kim Loong, a Malaysian Citizen, aged 46, was appointed as an Executive Director of the Company on
30 April 2000. On 28 April 2008, he was re-designated to Non-Executive Director. Prior to this, he was primarily
involved in production and engineering, providing direction and overseeing the group’s management information
systems, strengthening manufacturing processes as well as the quality control and assurance procedures of the
Group.

On 28 July 2008, he was appointed as a member of the Nominating Committee. His brothers, Mr. Guan Kok Beng
and Mr. Guan Kim Heng, his nephews, Mr. Guan Shaw Kee and Mr. Guan Shaw Yin, are also members of the Board.
He is a major shareholder of TBHL Holdings Sdn Bhd, which is a major shareholder of Eurospan.

Dato’ Noor Ahmad Mokhtar bin Haniff
Independent Non-Executive Director

Dato’ Mokhtar, a Malaysian Citizen, aged 71, was appointed as an Independent Non-Executive Director of the
Company on 19 May 2000. Dato’ Mokhtar graduated with a Bachelor of Arts Degree (Hons) in Economics in 1964
and obtained a post graduate Diploma in Education in 1965, both from Universiti Malaya. He also obtained a
certificate in Top Management from the Asian Institute of Management in Manila in 1977. He joined Penang
Development Corporation (“PDC”) as the Principal Director of the Free Trade Zone in 1972 and was subsequently
promoted to its Administration Manager in 1976 and Deputy General Manager in 1980. From 1991 to his retirement
in 1997, he was the General Manager of PDC.

He serves as the Chairman of the Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee, Nominating Committee and ESOS
Committee. He does not have any family relationship with any director of the Company. He also sits on the Board
of Yikon Corporation Bhd and Globetronics Technology Bhd.

Diong Chin Teck
Independent Non-Executive Director

Mr Diong Chin Teck, a Malaysian Citizen, aged 77, was appointed as an Independent Non-Executive Director of
the Company on 19 May 2000. He is a Fellow of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in Australia and a member
of the Malaysian Institute of Accountants (“MIA”). In 1967, he joined KPMG, Chartered Accountants and was made
a partner in 1971. He retired from the firm in 1988.

He serves as a member of the Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nominating Committee. He does
not have any family relationship with any director of the Company. He also sits on the Board of Globetronics
Technology Bhd, Asas Dunia Berhad and Zhulian Corporation Berhad.

Conflict of Interest
None of the Directors has any conflict of interest with the Company.

Conviction for Offences
None of the Directors has been convicted for offences within the past 10 years.

Material Contracts
There are no material contracts of the Company and its subsidiaries that involve the Directors’ and major
Shareholders’ interests.
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STATEMENT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Board of Directors is supportive of the adoption of principles and best practices as enshrined in the Malaysian
Code on Corporate Governance throughout the Group, for the protection and enhancement of stakeholders’
value and the performance of the Group.

The Board of Directors is pleased to disclose below the manners in which it has applied the principles of good
corporate governance and considered that it had complied with the best practices provisions except as stated
otherwise.

A. BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board of Directors has the overall responsibility for corporate governance, strategic direction and
operations of the Group.

1.0 Board Meetings

The Board of Directors met on five (5) occasions during the financial year and the attendance of each
member of the Board is as follows:

Name of Directors Attendance

Guan Kok Beng 5/5

Dato’ Noor Ahmad Mokhtar Bin Haniff 5/5

Diong Chin Teck 5/5

Guan Kim Heng 5/5

Guan Kim Loong 5/5

Guan Shaw Kee 5/5

Guan Shaw Yin 5/5

Board meetings are scheduled in advance at the beginning of each calendar year to enable Directors to plan
and adjust their schedule to ensure good attendance and the expected degree of attention given to the
Board agenda.

During the course of a meeting, the Board deliberated and considered on matters including the Group’s
financial performance, business review, operating performance to-date against the annual budget and the
business strategies. The Audit Committee also reports the outcome of committee meetings to the Board
and such reports are incorporated as part of the minutes of the Board meetings.

Where a potential conflict of interest may arise, it is mandatory practice for the Director concerned to
declare his interest and abstain from the decision making process.

2.0 Board Balance and Independence

The Board consists of seven (7) members, comprising three (3) Executive Directors, two (2) Non-Executive
Directors and two (2) Independent Non-Executive Directors. The Directors, with their different backgrounds
and specialization, collectively bring with them a wide range of experience and expertise in areas such as
marketing, operations, finance and corporate affairs. A brief profile of each Director is presented on pages
6 and 7 of this Annual Report.

Although the positions of Chairman and Managing Director are held by the same Director, the Board is of
the opinion that no one individual has unfettered powers of decision as there is a strong independent element
within the Board in the form of the two (2) Independent Non-Executive Directors, who provide a check
and balance in the Board on decision-making. Moreover, it is the practice of the Chairman to encourage
participation by all members during Board meetings.



STATEMENT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE (CONTINUED)

2.0 Board Balance and Independence (Continued)

The appointment of a Senior Independent Non-Executive Director to whom concerns may be conveyed
has not been made, given that the Board is open for full deliberation of all matters submitted to the Board
and Shareholders’ meetings. In addition, the Board has strong independent elements within the Board in the
form of the Independent Non-Executive Directors. Thus, the Board does not consider it necessary at this
juncture to identify a Senior Independent Non-Executive Director.

3.0 Supply of Information

The Chairman ensures that all Directors have full and timely access to information with Board papers
distributed in advance of meetings. Every Director has also unhindered access to the advice and services
of the Company Secretary. The Board believes that the current Company Secretary is capable of carrying
out his duties to ensure the effective functioning of the Board. The Articles of Association specifies that the
removal of the secretary is a matter for the Board as a whole.

Prior to the meetings of the Board and the Board Committees, Board papers which include the agenda and
reports relevant to the issues of the meetings covering the areas of strategic, financial, operational and
regulatory compliance matters, were circulated to all the Directors to obtain further explanation, where
necessary, in order to be properly briefed before the meeting.

The Directors review and approve all corporate announcements, including the announcement of the quarterly
financial reports, prior to releasing them to the Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad (‘Bursa Securities’).

The Board as a whole determines whether as a full board or in their individual capacity, to take independent
professional advice, where necessary and under appropriate circumstances, in furtherance of their duties,
at the Group’s expense.

4.0 Appointment to the Board

The Group has implemented procedures for the nomination and election of Directors via the Nomination
Committee. The Nomination Committee is responsible for identifying and recommending to the Board a
suitable candidate for appointment to the Board and Board Committees, and also performance appraisal
of the Directors.

The Nomination Committee was established in November 2001. The Nomination Committee formulates
the nomination and selection policies for the Board, and reviews candidates for appointment as Directors
based on criteria such as their qualifications, skills, functional knowledge, experience, character, integrity,
professionalism and background.

5.0 Re-election of Directors

In accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association, all Directors shall retire from office at least once
in each three (3) years and a retiring Director is eligible for re-election and the election of each Director
is voted on separately. This re-election process provides an opportunity for the shareholders to renew their
mandates. In order to assist the shareholders in their decision, sufficient information such as personal profiles,
meeting attendance and their shareholdings in the Company for each Director is furnished in the Annual
Report.

The Articles of Association further provide that all newly appointed Directors shall retire from office but
shall be eligible for re-election in the next Annual General Meeting subsequent to their appointment.

Directors over seventy (70) years of age are required to submit themselves for re-appointment annually in
accordance with Section 129(6) of the Companies Act, 1965.

The Company Secretary will ensure that all the necessary information is obtained, as well as all legal and
regulatory obligations are met before the appointments are made.
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5.0 Re-election of Directors (Continued)

The Nomination Committee upon its recent annual review carried out, is satisfied that the size of the Board
is optimum and that there is appropriate mix of knowledge, skills attributes and core competencies in the
composition of the Board. The Nomination Committee is satisfied that all the Members of the Board are
suitably qualified to hold their positions as Directors of Eurospan Holdings Berhad in view of their academic
and professional qualifications, experience and qualities.

Meetings of the Nomination Committee are held as and when required, and at least once a year. The
Members registered full attendance at all meetings held by the Nomination Committee in the financial year
ended 31 May 2010.

6.0 Directors’ Training

The Board has empowered the Directors of the Company to determine their own training requirements
as they consider necessary or deem fit and expedient to enhance their knowledge in new rules and regulations
as well as understanding of the Group’s business and operations and to keep abreast with current developments
in the market place.

All Directors have attended and successfully completed the Mandatory Accreditation Programme (MAP)
pursuant to the requirement of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad.

There were also briefings by the Internal and External Auditors and the Company Secretary on the relevant
updates on statutory and regulatory requirements from time to time during the Board meetings and Audit
Committee meetings.

In addition, members of the Board are well informed of various development programmes and encouraged
to attend these programmes to keep abreast with the development in the industry and relevant regulatory
updates in furtherance of their duties. However, due to their busy schedule, certain Directors did not attend
any training for the financial year ended 31 May 2010. The Directors will endeavour to fulfill their training
requirements for the financial year ending 31 May 2011.

B. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

The Remuneration Committee was established by the Board in November 2001. The Remuneration Committee
carries out the annual review of the overall remuneration policy for Directors whereupon recommendations
are submitted to the Board for approval. The Remuneration Committee ensures that the Company’s
remuneration policy remains supportive of the Company’s corporate objectives and is aligned with the
interest of shareholders, and further that the remuneration packages of Directors are sufficiently attractive
to draw in and to retain persons of high calibre.

The Company pays its Directors an annual fee, which is approved annually by the shareholders.

Details of the nature and amount of each major element of the remuneration of the Directors of the
Company, are as follows:-

Directors Salaries Fees Other emoluments
(RM’000) (RM’000) (RM’000)

Executive 744 190 294

Non-Executive - 140 9

STATEMENT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE (CONTINUED)



B. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (Continued)

The number of Directors whose remuneration falls into the following bands is:-

Range of Remuneration Executive Non-Executive
RM

50,000 and below - 4

50,001 – 250,000 - -

250,001 – 300,000 2 -

300,001 – 700,000 - -

700,001 – 750,000 1 -

Individual remuneration of each Director is not disclosed as the Directors are of the view that the disclosure
by bands above provides sufficient information.

C. BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has set up four (4) Board Committees, i.e. Audit, Nomination, Remuneration and Employees’
Share Option Scheme (‘ESOS’) Committees, to delegate specific powers and responsibilities to support the
role of the Board to provide assurance and accountability to its shareholders, all of which have their own
terms of reference.

The composition of the Board Committees and the attendance of Members at Board Committees meetings
held in the financial year ended 31 May 2010 are reflected as follows:-

Audit Committee Attendance

Dato’ Noor Ahmad Mokhtar Bin Haniff – Chairman 5/5
(Independent Non-Executive Director)

Diong Chin Teck 5/5
(Independent Non-Executive Director)

Guan Kim Heng 5/5
(Non-Independent Non-Executive Director)

Nomination Committee Attendance

Dato’ Noor Ahmad Mokhtar Bin Haniff – Chairman 1/1
(Independent Non-Executive Director)

Diong Chin Teck 1/1
(Independent Non-Executive Director)

Guan Kim Loong 1/1
(Non-Independent Non-Executive Director)

Remuneration Committee Attendance

Dato’ Noor Ahmad Mokhtar Bin Haniff – Chairman 1/1
(Independent Non-Executive Director)

Diong Chin Teck 1/1
(Independent Non-Executive Director)

Guan Kok Beng 1/1
(Executive Chairman / Managing Director)

STATEMENT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE (CONTINUED)
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C. BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)

ESOS Committee Attendance

Dato’ Noor Ahmad Mokhtar Bin Haniff – Chairman 2/2
(Independent Non-Executive Director)

Guan Shaw Yin 2/2
(Executive Director)

Moy Ean Chung 2/2
(Management Staff)

Kim Lee Ming  (Resigned on 4th May 2010) 2/2
(Management Staff)

Tan Sim Yong (Resigned on 15th April 2010) 2/2
(Management Staff)

Lui Mei Yih (appointed on 28th July 2010) 1/1
(Management Staff)

The ESOS Committee was established in July 2004. The ESOS Committee is responsible for the policies,
governance and orderly administration of the ESOS. The Committee presides over all issues, complaints
and appeals regarding ESOS and discharges its duties and responsibilities to the best interest of the Group
and in accordance with the objectives and provisions contained in the ESOS By-laws.

The Committee oversees management’s implementation of the scheme and decides, amongst others, on the
offer, offer date, eligibility, basis of allotment, the exercise of options, the administration, modification to the
scheme, dispute and termination issues in relation to the scheme.

Further details on the other Board Committees are contained in the Statement on Corporate Governance
and Audit Committee Report.

D. SHAREHOLDERS

The Group is fully aware of the importance of effective and timely communication with shareholders and
investors and the Board endeavours to make timely release of annual reports, press releases, quarterly
reports and any announcements in material corporate exercises which are the primary mode of disseminating
information on Group’s business activities and financial performance.

The Annual General Meeting represents the principal communication channel and dialogue with the
shareholders and the shareholders are encouraged to ask questions both about the resolutions being
proposed or about the Group’s operations in general, as appropriate. The external auditors attend Annual
General Meetings upon invitation and to provide their professional and independent clarification on issues
raised by the shareholders.

Each item of the ordinary and special business in the Notice of the Annual General Meeting would be
accompanied with a full explanation of the effects of the proposed resolution.

The results of all the resolutions as set out in the Notice of the Annual General Meeting would be announced
on the same date as the Annual General Meeting via Bursa Link, which is accessible on Bursa Malaysia
Securities Berhad’s website.

A press conference is normally held immediately after the meeting to facilitate media queries on the Group’s
financial performance and operations.

The Company also maintains a website (www.eurospan.com.my) through which shareholders and the
general public can obtain up-to-date information.

While the Company endeavours to provide as much information as possible to its shareholders and
stakeholders, the Company is mindful of the legal and regulatory framework governing the release of material
and price-sensitive information. Any information that may be regarded as undisclosed material information
about the Group will not be given to any single shareholder or shareholder group.

STATEMENT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE (CONTINUED)
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STATEMENT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE (CONTINUED)
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D. SHAREHOLDERS (Continued)

Where Extraordinary General Meetings are held to obtain shareholder’s approval on certain business or
corporate proposals, comprehensive circulars to shareholders would be sent within prescribed deadlines
in accordance with the statutory and regulatory requirements.

E. ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

1.0 Financial Reporting

The Board aims to provide and present a balanced and meaningful assessment of the Group’s financial
performance and prospects at the end of the financial year, primarily through the annual financial statements,
quarterly announcement of the results to shareholders and the Chairman’s statement in the Annual Report.
The Board is assisted by the Audit Committee to oversee the Group’s financial reporting processes and the
quality of its financial reporting.

2.0 Directors’ Responsibility Statement in Respect of the Preparation of the Audited
Financial Statements

The Board is responsible for ensuring that the financial statements of the Group give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the Group and of the Company as at the end of the financial year and of their results
and cash flows for the year then ended. In preparing the financial statements, the Directors have ensured
that applicable approved accounting standards in Malaysia and the provisions of the Companies Act, 1965
have been applied.

In preparing the financial statements, the Directors have selected and applied consistently suitable accounting
policies and made reasonable and prudent judgements and estimates.

The Directors also have a general responsibility for taking such steps as are reasonably open to them to
safeguard the assets of the Group and to prevent and detect fraud and other irregularities.

3.0 Internal Controls

The Directors recognises their ultimate responsibility for the Group’s system of internal controls and the
need to review its effectiveness regularly in order to safeguard the Group’s assets and therefore shareholders’
investments in the Group. To assist the Board, the Group has in place an adequately resourced internal audit
division. As proper risk management is a significant component of a sound system of internal control, the
Group has also put in place a structured risk management process to better identify, monitor and ensure
the relevant and appropriate measures to manage the business risk affecting the Group. This system by its
nature can only provide reasonable but not absolute assurance against misstatement, fraud or loss.

4.0 Relationship with the Auditors

Key features underlying the relationship of the Audit Committee with the internal and external auditors are
included in the Audit Committee’s terms of reference as detailed on pages 16 to 18 of the Annual Report.

5.0 Compliance Statement

Save and except where stated otherwise, the Board is pleased to state that the Group has substantially
complied with the best practices of the Code throughout the financial year.

This statement is issued in accordance with a Directors’ Resolution passed at a Board of Directors’ Meeting
held on 23 August 2010.
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INTRODUCTION

Paragraph 15.26(b) of the Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad Listing Requirements requires the Board of Directors
of public listed companies to include in their annual report, a “statement about the state of internal control of
the listed issuer as a group”. The Board of Directors (“Board”) is committed to maintaining a sound system of
internal control throughout the Group, comprising the Company and all its subsidiaries, and is pleased to provide
the following statement, which outlines the nature and scope of the internal control of the Group during the year.

BOARD RESPONSIBILITY

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for the Group’s system of internal control, which includes the establishment
of an appropriate control environment and framework as well as reviewing its adequacy and integrity. Because
of the limitations that are inherent in any system of internal control, this system is designed to manage, rather
than eliminate, the risk of failure to achieve corporate objectives. Accordingly, it can only provide reasonable not
absolute assurance against material misstatement, loss, fraud or breaches of laws or regulations. The system of
internal control covers, inter-alia, financial, organisational, operational and compliance controls.

The Board is aware of the publication of the “Statement on Internal Control – A guidance to Directors of Public
Listed Companies” (The “Internal Control Guidance”), which provides guidance on the process of identifying,
evaluating and managing significant risks faced by the Group. The Board has also adopted the Internal Control
Guidance in its efforts to ensure the adequacy and integrity of the system of internal control of the Group.

INTERNAL AUDIT FUNCTION

The Group has in place an internal audit function, which provides the Board with independent assurance it requires
regarding the adequacy and integrity of the system of internal control. The internal audit reviews the internal
controls for the key activities of the Group’s operations based on the approved annual internal audit plan. The
internal audit plan, prepared in accordance with a risk-based approach was essentially drawn up to review the
key processes established within the operations of the Group.

For the financial year under review, management has acted upon the recommendations made by the internal audit
function, as appropriate, in order to enhance the system of internal control.

ENTERPRISE RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group has established an enterprise risk management framework to identify, evaluate and manage the significant
risks that may adversely affect the achievement of its business objectives.

OTHER CONTROL PROCESSES

The Board has put in place an organisational structure with defined lines of responsibility and delegation of
authority. A hierarchical reporting system has been established which includes inter-alia, the establishment of limits
of authority coupled with the issuance of policies on health and safety, training and development, staff performance
and serious misconduct. These procedures provide continuous assurance to be given at increasingly higher levels
of Management and, finally to the Board. The Group Managing Director also reports to the Board on significant
changes in the business and external environment, which affects the operations of the Group at large.

The Group Finance Manager provides the Board with quarterly financial information, including pertinent explanations
on the performance of the Group.

WEAKNESSES IN INTERNAL CONTROLS THAT RESULT IN MATERIAL LOSS

There were no material losses incurred during the current financial year as a result of weaknesses in internal
control. The Board, together with Management, continue to take measures to strengthen the control environment.
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STATEMENT ON INTERNAL CONTROL (CONTINUED)

REVIEW OF THE STATEMENT BY EXTERNAL AUDITORS

The External Auditors have reviewed this Statement on Internal Control in accordance with Auditing Technical
Release 5, Guidance for Auditors on the Review of Directors’ Statement on Internal Control for the inclusion in
the annual report for the year ended 31 May 2010 in compliance with Paragraph 15.23 of Bursa Securities Listing
Requirement.

This statement is issued in accordance with a Directors’ Resolution passed at a Board of Directors’ Meeting held
on 23 August 2010.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT

The primary objective of the Audit Committee is to assist the Board of Directors in discharging its statutory
duties and responsibilities relating to accounting and reporting practices and to ensure the adequacy and effectiveness
of the Group’s system of internal control.

A. MEMBERSHIP AND MEETINGS

The Audit Committee met on five (5) occasions during the financial year and the attendance of each member
of the Audit Committee is as follows:-

Composition of the Audit Committee Attendance

Chairman Dato’ Noor Ahmad Mokhtar Bin Haniff 5/5
(Independent Non-Executive Director)

Members Diong Chin Teck 5/5
(Independent Non-Executive Director)

Guan Kim Heng 5/5
(Non-Independent Non-Executive Director)

B. TERMS OF REFERENCE OF AUDIT COMMITTEE

1.0 Membership

1.1 The Committee shall be appointed by the Board of Directors and consist of not less than three (3)
members, all members must be non-executive directors, with a majority of whom should be Independent
Directors.

1.2 At least one (1) member of the Audit Committee:-

(a) must be a member  of Malaysian Institute of Accountants; or

(b) if he is not a member of the Malaysian Institute of Accountants, he must have at least three (3)
years working experience and:-

(i) he must have passed the examinations specified in Part I of the 1st Schedule of the Accountants
Act, 1967;

(ii) he must be a member of one of the associations of accountants specified in Part II of the
1st Schedule of the Accountants Act, 1967; or

(c) fulfils such other requirements as prescribed or approved by Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad.

1.3 The Board of Directors must ensure that no alternate director is appointed as a member of the Audit
Committee.

1.4 The members of the Committee shall elect a Chairman from amongst their number who shall be an
Independent Director.

1.5 In the event of any vacancy in the Committee resulting in the number of members being reduced to
below three (3), the Board of Directors must fill the vacancy within three (3) months.

2.0 Authority

2.1 The Committee shall in accordance with a procedure to be determined:-

(a) have authority to investigate any matter within its terms of reference;

(b) have the resources which are required to perform its duties;

(c) have full and unrestricted access to any information pertaining to the Company;

(d) have direct communication channels with the external auditors and person(s) carrying the internal
audit function or activity;

(e) be able to obtain independent professional or other advice; and
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AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT (CONTINUED)

B. TERMS OF REFERENCE OF AUDIT COMMITTEE (Continued)

2.0 Authority

(f) be able to convene meetings with the external auditors, the internal auditors or both, excluding the
attendance of other directors and employees of the Company, whenever deemed necessary.

3.0 Functions

3.1 The duties of the Committee include:-

3.1.1 to review the following and report the same to the Board of Directors of the Company:-

(a) with the external auditors, the audit plan, including the scope of work to ascertain that
will meet the needs of the Board, the shareholders and regulatory authorities;

(b) with the external auditors, the evaluation of the system of internal accounting controls;

(c) with the external auditors, the audit report, including the management’s response, to discuss
problems and observations arising from the final audits and any matters the external
auditors may wish to discuss (in the absence of management where necessary);

(d) the assistance given by the employees of the Company to the external auditors;

(e) the adequacy of the scope, functions, competency and resources of the Internal Audit
Department and that it has the necessary authority to carry out its work;

(f) the internal audit programme, processes, the results of the internal audit programme,
processes or investigation undertaken and whether or not appropriate action is taken in
accordance to the recommendations of the Internal Audit Department and urgent response
to the major findings of internal investigations;

(g) the quarterly results and year end financial statements, prior to the approval by the Board
of Directors, focusing particularly on:-

(i) changes in or implementation of major accounting policy changes and practices;

(ii) significant and unusual events;

(iii) compliance with accounting standards and other legal requirements and the going
concern assumptions; and

(iv) significant adjustments arising from the audit;

(h) any related party transaction and conflict of interest situation that may arise with the
Company or Group including any transaction, procedure or course that raises questions
on management integrity;

(i) any letter of resignation from external auditors of the Company; and

(j) whether there is reason (supported by grounds) to believe that the Company’s external
auditors are not suitable for re-appointment.

3.1.2 to consider the appointment or termination of a person or persons as external auditors and
their remuneration.

3.1.3 To review any appraisal or assessment of the performance of internal audit staff and consider
the appointment or termination of internal audit staff and their remuneration.

3.1.4 To take cognisance of resignation of senior internal audit staff member and to provide an
opportunity to submit the reasons for resigning.

3.1.5 To promptly report to Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad any matter reported by the Committee
to the Board which has not been satisfactorily resolved resulting in a breach of the Listing
Requirements.
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B. TERMS OF REFERENCE OF AUDIT COMMITTEE (Continued)

3.0 Functions (Continued)

3.1.6 To verify the allocation of options to employees pursuant to the share option scheme complies
with the allocation criteria.

3.1.7 To carry out other functions as may be agreed to by the Committee and the Board.

4.0 Meetings

4.1 Meetings shall be held not less than four (4) times a year and shall normally be attended by the Head
of Finance and Internal Auditors. The presence of the external auditors will be requested, if required.
Other board members and employees attend only at the Committee’s invitation.

4.2 At least twice a year, the Committee shall meet with the external auditors, the internal auditors or
both without the executive board members present.

4.3 The quorum for each meeting shall be two. The majority of members present to form a quorum must
be Independent Directors.

4.4 The Company Secretary shall be the Secretary of the Committee. The Secretary shall circulate the
minutes of meetings of the Committee to all members of the Board.

C. SUMMARY OF ACTIVITIES OF AUDIT COMMITTEE

During the year, the Committee carried out the following activities:-

1.0 Financial Reporting

1.1 Reviewed the quarterly unaudited financial results of the Company and of the Group prior to submission
to the Board of Directors for approval and subsequent release to the Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad.

1.2 Reviewed the annual audited financial statements with the external auditors prior to submission to
the Board of Directors for approval. The review was to ensure that the financial reporting and disclosures
are in compliance with:-

(a) provisions of the Companies Act, 1965;

(b) Listing Requirements of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad;

(c) Applicable approved accounting standards in Malaysia, and

(d) Other legal and regulatory requirements.

In the review of the annual audited financial statements, the Audit Committee discussed with
Management and the external auditors the accounting principles and standards that were applied
and their judgements of the items that may affect the financial statements.

2.0 Internal Audit

2.1 Reviewed the annual audit plan to ensure adequate scope and comprehensive coverage of the activities.

2.2 Reviewed the effectiveness of the audit process, resource requirements for the year and assessed the
performance of Internal Audit Division.

2.3 Reviewed the internal audit reports which were tabled during the year, the audit recommendations
made and Management’s response to these recommendations. Where appropriate, the Committee has
directed Management to rectify and improve control and workflow procedures based on the internal
auditors’ recommendations and suggestions for improvement.

2.4 Monitored the corrective actions on the outstanding audit issues to ensure that all the key risks and
control lapses have been addressed.

AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT (CONTINUED)
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C. SUMMARY OF ACTIVITIES OF AUDIT COMMITTEE (Continued)

2.0 Internal Audit

2.5 Reviewed Internal Audit Division’s audit methodology in assessing and rating risks of auditable areas
and ensured that all high and critical risk areas were audited annually.

2.6 Reviewed the staffing requirements of Internal Audit Division, skills and the core competencies of the
internal auditors.

3.0 External Audit

3.1 reviewed with the external auditors:-

(a) their audit plan, audit strategy and scope of work for the year.

(b) The results of the annual audit, their audit report and Management letter together with Management’s
response to the findings of the external auditors.

3.2 Assessed the independence and objectivity of the external auditors during the year and prior to the
appointment of the external auditors for adhoc non-audit services. The Committee also received
reports from the external auditors on their own policies regarding independence and the measures
used to control the quality of their work.

3.3 Evaluated the performance and effectiveness of the external auditors and made recommendations to
the Board of Directors on their appointment and remuneration.

4.0 Employees’ Share Option Scheme (‘ESOS’)

4.1 Verified the allocation of options to employees pursuant to the ESOS offered to ensure that the scheme
complies with the allocation criteria.

5.0 Related Party Transactions

5.1 Reviewed the related party transactions entered into by the Company and the Group.

D. SUMMARY OF THE ACTIVITIES OF INTERNAL AUDIT FUNCTION

The internal audit division (‘IAD’) constitutes an independent managerial control which carries out its
assurance role by providing an independent and objective assurance to the Audit Committee (‘the Committee’)
in discharging its responsibilities. The IAD assists the Committee in discharging its duties and responsibilities
by providing reasonable assurance that the systems of internal control and risk management processes
operate satisfactorily and effectively.

The IAD also assists management in improving the Group’s operations by assisting management in inculcating
a systematic, disciplined approach in evaluating and improving on the effectiveness of the internal control
and risk management processes for a more effective control over the business operations.

During the year under review:-

(a) the IAD presented the annual risk-based audit plan prioritised by the risk profile of the Group for the
Committee’s approval. It performed risk-based audits on certain business processes and functions of
various business units within the Group in accordance with the approved annual risk-based internal
audit plan. Any subsequent changes to the internal audit plan would be approved by the Audit Committee.

(b) It verified the existence and assessed the adequacy, integrity and effectiveness of the internal controls
in place. It examined the supporting documents and records for completeness and accuracy in order
to provide reasonable assurance on the integrity and reliability of both the financial and non-financial
reporting.

(c) It verified and reported to the Committee, the allocation of options to eligible employees pursuant
to the Employees’ Share Option Scheme (‘ESOS’) offered to ensure that the scheme complies with
the allocation criteria.
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D. SUMMARY OF THE ACTIVITIES OF INTERNAL AUDIT FUNCTION (Continued)

(d) Upon completion of the audit, it reported its observations, findings and recommendations for
improvements in the internal audit report for the Committee’s deliberations. The IAD discussed with
the management regarding improvements and instituted follow-up actions to remedy the weaknesses
identified in the internal audit report.

All the internal audit activities were performed in-house. The total cost incurred in managing the IAD in
2010 was RM32,000.

E. STATEMENT BY THE AUDIT COMMITTEE IN RELATION TO ESOS ALLOCATION

The Company implemented an Employees’ Share Option Scheme (‘ESOS’) on 30 December 2004. On 27
July 2009, the Company extended the existing ESOS expiring on 29 December 2009 for a period of 5 years
pursuat to By-law 18.1 of the scheme.

Pursuant to Paragraph 8.17 of the Listing Requirements of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad, the Audit
Committee verified and confirmed that the allocation of options to eligible employees in the financial year
ended 31 May 2010, has been made in accordance with the allocation criteria of the scheme.

AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT (CONTINUED)
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CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

We interpret corporate social responsibility (“CSR”) to imply that the Group should become a responsible
corporate citizen of the country that it operates in by conducting its business practices legally and within the
ethical norms expected from the society and the environment. The Group CSR practices are focused on the
following areas:-

ENVIRONMENT

The Group is primarily a producer of dining sets furniture made from rubber wood sourced from rubber wood
plantations in Malaysia and its neighbouring countries. The rubber wood sourced from these countries is recognised
as ecologically friendly as it is harvested, produced and transported in a way that protects wildlife, the environment
and is sustainable for the needs of future generations. Hence the Group’s products are environmentally friendly
as its wooden components are ecologically friendly.

The Group is in compliance with the environmental laws governing plant operations in areas relating to emission
standards and plant effluents management.

On other environmental conservation measures, the Group continued to embark into an energy saving exercise
and recycling programme where recyclable materials are reused without wastages. Effective efforts on energy
conserving have also been practiced at workplaces and offices to ensure consumptions were brought to the
minimum.

WORKPLACE

The Occupational Health and Safety Committee which comprises of management representatives work closely
with management and employees to ensure that the Group’s health and safety policy is effectively implemented.
Employees are equipped with the necessary equipment and accessories at the various work sites and factory to
promote safety.

The Group encourages life-long learning. It has a mini library that lends out books to employees. Employees are
constantly provided with related skills development trainings as the Group believes the importance of human
resources development through career advancement and training. Industrial seminars and workshops are regularly
held to enhance employees’ capabilities in discharging their responsibilities effectively and efficiently.

The Group also conducts visits to international trade fairs/exhibitions and manufacturing plants locally and overseas,
to broaden the knowledge base of its employees.

MARKETPLACE

The Group upholds good practices of corporate governance and internal control with transparency practices and
approaches implemented for its business operations and transactions. Internal control procedures were properly
imposed within the Group in ensuring sufficient systems and controls were in place.

COMMUNITY

The Group played its role as a socially responsible corporate citizen in the community. During the year, the Group
supports the building of the foundation for the nation’s future by donations to the school children and their
activities.
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UTILISATION OF PROCEEDS RAISED FROM CORPORATE PROPOSAL

Not applicable as none was proposed.

SHARE BUY-BACK

The shareholders of the Company has renewed the Company’s authority to purchase its owned shares of up to
10% of the issued and paid up share capital at the last Annual General Meeting held on 26 October 2009. However,
the Company had not undertaken any share buy-back exercise for the financial year ended 31 May 2010 and as
at the reporting date, the Company has yet to implement any share buy-back.

OPTIONS, WARRANTS OR CONVERTIBLE SECURITIES

Except for the ESOS, the Company did not issue/grant any options, warrants or convertible securities during the
financial year ended 31 May 2010.

DEPOSITORY RECEIPT PROGRAMME

The Company does not sponsor any depository receipt programme.

SANCTIONS AND/OR PENALTIES

There was no sanctions and/or penalties imposed on the Company and its subsidiaries, Directors or Management
by the relevant regulatory bodies.

SHORTFALL IN THE PROFIT ACHIEVED IN THE FINANCIAL YEAR AS COMPARED
WITH THE PROFIT GUARANTEE

Not applicable as none was given during the financial year ended 31 May 2010.

NON-AUDIT FEES

The amount of non-audit fees paid by the Group to the external auditors during the financial year ended 31 May
2010 is approximately RM3,000.
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The Directors have pleasure in submitting their report and the audited financial statements of the Group and of
the Company for the year ended 31 May 2010.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activities of the Company are the provision of management services and investment holding.

The principal activities of the subsidiaries are set out in Note 5 to the financial statements.

There have been no significant changes in the nature of these activities during the financial year.

RESULTS
Group Company

RM RM

Profit for the year 359,494 3,315,691

RESERVES AND PROVISIONS

There were no material transfers to or from reserves and provisions during the year except as disclosed in the
financial statements.

DIVIDENDS

Since the end of the previous financial year, the Company paid a final single tier dividend of 8 sen per ordinary
share, totalling RM3,217,000 in respect of the year ended 31 May 2009 on 26 November 2009.

The final single tier dividend recommended by the Directors in respect of the year ended 31 May 2010 is 8 sen
per ordinary share, totalling RM3,237,000 which is subject to the approval of the shareholders at the forthcoming
Annual General Meeting of the Company.

DIRECTORS OF THE COMPANY

Directors who served since the date of the last report are:

Guan Kok Beng - Chairman and Managing Director

Guan Kim Heng

Guan Kim Loong

Dato’ Noor Ahmad Mokhtar Bin Haniff

Diong Chin Teck

Guan Shaw Kee 

Guan Shaw Yin

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS

The interests and deemed interests in the shares and options of the Company and of its related corporations
(other than wholly-owned subsidiaries) of those who were Directors at year end (including the interests of the
spouses or children of the Directors who themselves are not Directors of the Company) as recorded in the
Register of Directors’ Shareholdings are as follows:
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS (Continued)

Number of ordinary shares of RM1 each
Balance at Balance at

Name of Directors 1.6.2009 Bought Sold 31.5.2010

The Company

Direct interest

Guan Kok Beng - own 2,110,124 1,644,800 - 3,754,924

Guan Kim Heng - own 1,113,036 - - 1,113,036

Guan Kim Loong - own 838,576 - - 838,576

Diong Chin Teck - own 15,000 - - 15,000

Guan Shaw Kee - own - 50,000 - 51,000

Guan Shaw Yin - own - 51,000 - 50,000

Guan Shaw Yin - others * 14,000 - - 14,000

Deemed interest

Guan Kok Beng - own 18,511,200 - - 18,511,200

Guan Kim Heng - own 18,511,200 - - 18,511,200

Guan Kim Loong - own 18,511,200 - - 18,511,200

Number of options for ordinary shares of RM1 each
Balance at Balance at

The Company 1.6.2009 Granted Exercised 31.5.2010

Guan Kok Beng - own 600,000 - - 600,000

Guan Shaw Kee - own 30,000 470,000 - 500,000

Guan Shaw Yin - own 23,000 477,000 - 500,000

Guan Kim Heng - own - 200,000 - 200,000

Guan Kim Loong - own - 200,000 - 200,000

* These are shares held in the name of the spouse and are treated as interests of the respective Director in
accordance with Section 134(12)(c) of the Companies Act, 1965, which came to effect on 15 August 2007.

By virtue of their interests of more than 15% in the shares of the Company, Messrs Guan Kok Beng, Guan Kim
Heng and Guan Kim Loong are also deemed to have interests in the shares of all the subsidiaries during the
financial year to the extent that the Company has an interest.

None of the other Directors holding office at 31 May 2010 had any interest in the ordinary shares and/or options
of the Company and of its related corporations during the financial year.

DIRECTORS’ BENEFITS

Since the end of the previous financial year, no Director of the Company has received nor become entitled to
receive any benefit (other than a benefit included in the aggregate amount of emoluments received or due and
receivable by Directors as shown in the financial statements) by reason of a contract made by the Company or
a related company with the Director or with a firm of which the Director is a member, or with a company in
which the Director has a substantial financial interest other than as disclosed in Note 24 to the financial statements.

There were no arrangements during and at the end of the financial year which had the object of enabling Directors
of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company or
any other body corporate apart from the issue of the Employees’ Share Option Scheme (“ESOS”) of the Company.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MAY 2010

ISSUE OF SHARES AND DEBENTURES

During the financial year, the issued and paid-up share capital of the Company was increased from RM40,212,500
to RM40,462,500 through the issuance of 250,000 new ordinary shares of RM1.00 each at par for cash arising
from the exercise of Employees’ Share Option at an exercise price of RM1.00 per share.

There were no other changes in the issued and paid-up capital of the Company during the financial year. There
were no debentures issued during the financial year.

OPTIONS GRANTED OVER UNISSUED SHARES

No options were granted to any person to take up unissued shares of the Company during the financial year apart
from the issue of options pursuant to the ESOS.

On 22 November 2004, the Company’s shareholders approved the establishment of an ESOS of not more than
15% of the issued share capital of the Company to eligible Directors and employees of the Group.

At the extraordinary general meeting held on 27 July 2009, the Company’s shareholders approved the extension
of the existing ESOS expiring on 29 December 2009 for a further period of five years.

The options offered to take up unissued ordinary shares of RM1.00 each and the exercise prices are as follows:

Number of options over ordinary shares of RM1 each
Lapsed

Date of offer Exercise Balance at due to Balance at
price 1.6.2009 Granted Exercised resignation 31.5.2010

RM

24 January 2005 1.00 2,666,000 - (250,000) (216,500) 2,199,500

9 February 2005 1.00 3,000 - - - 3,000

10 April 2005 1.00 10,000 - - (10,000) -

10 May 2005 1.00 48,000 - - (30,000) 18,000

10 July 2005 1.00 37,000 - - - 37,000

10 August 2005 1.00 23,000 - - - 23,000

10 October 2005 1.00 3,000 - - - 3,000

10 November 2005 1.00 9,000 - - (3,000) 6,000

10 December 2005 1.00 12,000 - - (3,000) 9,000

10 January 2006 1.00 12,000 - - (3,000) 9,000

10 February 2006 1.00 9,000 - - (3,000) 6,000

10 March 2006 1.00 35,000 - - - 35,000

10 April 2006 1.00 6,000 - - - 6,000

10 May 2006 1.00 18,000 - - - 18,000

10 June 2006 1.00 19,000 - - - 19,000

10 September 2006 1.00 25,500 - - (7,500) 18,000

10 January 2007 1.00 21,000 - - (3,000) 18,000

10 February 2007 1.00 12,000 - - (9,000) 3,000

10 March 2007 1.00 32,000 - - - 32,000

10 April 2007 1.00 10,000 - - - 10,000

10 May 2007 1.00 36,000 - - (16,000) 20,000

10 June 2007 1.00 15,000 - - - 15,000

10 July 2007 1.00 9,000 - - - 9,000

10 August 2007 1.00 15,000 - - - 15,000

10 September 2007 1.00 26,000 - - (3,000) 23,000

Carried forward 3,111,500 - (250,000) (307,000) 2,554,500
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OPTIONS GRANTED OVER UNISSUED SHARES (Continued)

Number of options over ordinary shares of RM1 each
Lapsed

Date of offer Exercise Balance at due to Balance at
price 1.6.2009 Granted Exercised resignation 31.5.2010

RM

Brought forward 1.00 3,111,500 - (250,000) (307,000) 2,554,500

10 October 2007 1.00 9,000 - - - 9,000

10 November 2007 1.00 33,000 - - (3,000) 30,000

10 December 2007 1.00 21,000 - - - 21,000

10 January 2008 1.00 56,000 - - (10,000) 46,000

10 February 2008 1.00 29,000 - - - 29,000

10 March 2008 1.00 35,000 - - (18,000) 17,000

10 April 2008 1.00 38,000 - - - 38,000

10 May 2008 1.00 65,000 - - (41,000) 24,000

10 June 2008 1.00 111,000 - - (60,000) 51,000

10 July 2008 1.00 58,000 - - (58,000) -

10 November 2008 1.00 9,000 - - - 9,000

10 December 2008 1.00 46,000 - - - 46,000

15 December 2009 1.00 - 1,922,000 - (37,000) 1,885,000

15 March 2010 1.00 - 24,000 - - 24,000

3,621,500 1,946,000 (250,000) (534,000) 4,783,500

The details of the ESOS granted to the eligible Directors and employees who have been granted with 30,000
options or more during the financial year ended 31 May 2010 are as follows:

Number of options over ordinary shares of RM1 each
Grant Exercise At At

date price 1.6.2009 Granted Exercised Forfeited 31.5.2010
RM

Guan Shaw Kee 15.12.2009 1.00 30,000 470,000 - - 500,000

Guan Shaw Yin 15.12.2009 1.00 23,000 477,000 - - 500,000

Guan Kim Heng 15.12.2009 1.00 - 200,000 - - 200,000

Guan Kim Loong 15.12.2009 1.00 - 200,000 - - 200,000

Looi Lam Him 15.12.2009 1.00 - 70,000 - - 70,000

Other than the above, a total of 529,000 options were granted to 77 employees of the Group. The average number
of options to individual employee is 6,870.

The Company has been granted exemption by the Companies Commission of Malaysia from having to disclose
in this report the names of persons to whom options have been granted to subscribe for less than 30,000 ordinary
shares of RM1 each during the financial year and details of their holdings as required by Section 169(11) of the
Companies Act, 1965. This information has been separately filed with the Companies Commission of Malaysia.

The salient features of the scheme are, inter alia, as follows:

i) Eligible employees are those who have been confirmed in writing as employees of the Group on the date
of offer and have been employed for a period of at least one (1) year prior to the date of offer.

ii) The option is personal to the grantee and is non-assignable.
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OPTIONS GRANTED OVER UNISSUED SHARES (Continued)

iii) The exercise price shall be determined by the weighted average market price of the Company’s ordinary
shares as shown in the daily official list issued by Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad for the five market days
immediately preceding the respective dates of the offer in writing to the grantee or at the par value of the
ordinary shares of the Company, whichever is higher.

iv) The options granted may be exercised at any time within a period of five years from the date the ESOS
comes into force or upon the date of expiry or termination of the ESOS as provided in the By-Law, whichever
is the earlier. However, the Company may, if the Board deems fit upon the recommendation of the ESOS
Committee, extend the ESOS for a further five years.

v) The options granted may be exercised in full or in lesser number of ordinary shares provided that the
number shall be in multiples of 100 shares.

The persons to whom the options have been granted have no right to participate by virtue of the options in any
share issue of any other company.

OTHER STATUTORY INFORMATION

Before the balance sheets and income statements of the Group and of the Company were made out, the Directors
took reasonable steps to ascertain that:

i) all known bad debts have been written off and adequate provision made for doubtful debts, and

ii) all current assets have been stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

At the date of this report, the Directors are not aware of any circumstances:

i) that would render the amount written off for bad debts, or the amount of the provision for doubtful debts,
in the Group and in the Company inadequate to any substantial extent, or

ii) that would render the value attributed to the current assets in the Group and in the Company financial
statements misleading, or 

iii) which have arisen which render adherence to the existing method of valuation of assets or liabilities of the
Group and of the Company misleading or inappropriate, or

iv) not otherwise dealt with in this report or the financial statements, that would render any amount stated
in the financial statements of the Group and of the Company misleading.

At the date of this report, there does not exist:

i) any charge on the assets of the Group or of the Company that has arisen since the end of the financial year
and which secures the liabilities of any other person, or

ii) any contingent liability in respect of the Group or of the Company that has arisen since the end of the
financial year.

No contingent liability or other liability of any company in the Group has become enforceable, or is likely to

become enforceable within the period of twelve months after the end of the financial year which, in the opinion
of the Directors, will or may substantially affect the ability of the Group and of the Company to meet their
obligations as and when they fall due.

In the opinion of the Directors, the results of the operations of the Group and of the Company for the financial
year ended 31 May 2010 have not been substantially affected by any item, transaction or event of a material and
unusual nature nor has any such item, transaction or event occurred in the interval between the end of that
financial year and the date of this report.
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AUDITORS

The auditors, Messrs KPMG, have indicated their willingness to accept re-appointment.

Signed on behalf of the Board of Directors in accordance with a resolution of the Directors:

Guan Kok Beng

Guan Shaw Yin

Penang,
Date: 23 August 2010
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Note 2010 2009
RM RM

Assets

Property, plant and equipment 3 25,041,287 26,557,875

Prepaid lease payments 4 316,452 320,967

Other investments 6 987,177 1,783,093

Total non-current assets 26,344,916 28,661,935

Receivables, deposits and prepayments 7 2,156,253 2,289,012

Inventories 8 12,024,970 11,107,037

Current tax assets 696,566 342,816

Cash and cash equivalents 9 30,143,476 30,898,790

Total current assets 45,021,265 44,637,655

Total assets 71,366,181 73,299,590

Equity

Share capital 10 40,462,500 40,212,500

Reserves 11 23,667,243 26,350,642

Total equity 64,129,743 66,563,142

Liabilities
Deferred tax liabilities 12 1,569,782 1,929,024

Total non-current liabilities 1,569,782 1,929,024

Payables and accruals 14 5,666,656 4,807,424

Total current liabilities 5,666,656 4,807,424

Total liabilities 7,236,438 6,736,448

Total equity and liabilities 71,366,181 73,299,590

The notes on pages 37 to 65 are an integral part of these financial statements.

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
AT 31 MAY 2010
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Note 2010 2009
RM RM

Continuing operations

Revenue 15 62,127,811 62,796,819

Cost of sales (54,497,240) (54,003,378)

Gross profit 7,630,571 8,793,441

Distribution costs (1,472,533) (1,551,900)

Administrative expenses (6,441,433) (5,863,088)

Other operating expenses (250,361) (331,499)

Other operating income 738,120 2,889,826

Profit before tax 16 204,364 3,936,780

Tax expense 19 155,130 (568,531)

Profit for the year 359,494 3,368,249

Basic earnings per ordinary share (sen) 20 0.89 8.38

Diluted earnings per ordinary share (sen) 20 0.89 8.38

Dividends per ordinary share - net (sen) 21 8.00 10.00

The notes on pages 37 to 65 are an integral part of these financial statements.

CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MAY 2010
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Non-distributable Distributable
Share

Share Share option Retained
Note capital premium reserve earnings Total

RM RM RM RM RM

At 1 June 2008 40,212,500 8,099,308 148,199 18,697,892 67,157,899

Profit for the year - - - 3,368,249 3,368,249

Share-based payments 13 - - 58,244 - 58,244

Transfer from share option
reserve for share options
lapsed              - - (25,813) 25,813 -

Dividends                          21 - - - (4,021,250) (4,021,250)

At 31 May 2009 40,212,500 8,099,308 180,630 18,070,704 66,563,142

Profit for the year - - - 359,494 359,494

Issuance of new ordinary
shares pursuant to ESOS 10 250,000 - - - 250,000

Share-based payments                13 - - 174,107 - 174,107

Transfer from share option
reserve for share options
exercised and lapsed              - - (31,089) 31,089 -

Dividend                          21 - - - (3,217,000) (3,217,000)

At 31 May 2010 40,462,500 8,099,308   323,648 15,244,287 64,129,743

The notes on pages 37 to 65 are an integral part of these financial statements.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MAY 2010
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Note 2010 2009
RM RM

Cash flows from operating activities

Profit before tax from continuing operations 204,364 3,936,780

Adjustments for:

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 3 2,855,528 3,052,084

Amortisation of prepaid lease payments 4 4,515 4,515

Gain on disposal of plant and equipment 16 (2,678) (34,473)

(Gain)/Loss on disposal of other investments 6 (22,200) 92,078

Plant and equipment written off 16 - 55,300

Interest income from unit trust funds reinvested 16 (4,084) (10,492)

Interest income 16 (541,351) (546,589)

Share-based payments 13 174,107 58,244

Operating profit before changes in working capital 2,668,201 6,607,447

Changes in working capital:

Receivables, deposits and prepayments 132,759 3,874,370

Inventories (917,933) 462,918

Payables and accruals 859,232 (978,406)

Cash generated from operations 2,742,259 9,966,329

Tax paid (557,862) (952,714)

Net cash from operating activities 2,184,397 9,013,615

Cash flows from investing activities

Acquisition of other investments - (582,295)

Proceeds from disposal of other investments 6 822,200 1,017,616

Purchase of property, plant and equipment 3 (1,427,392) (1,458,217)

Proceeds from disposal of plant and equipment 91,130 99,799

Interest received 541,351 546,589

Net cash from/(used in) investing activities 27,289 (376,508)

Cash flows from financing activities

Dividends paid 21 (3,217,000) (4,021,250)

Proceeds from shares issued under ESOS 10 250,000 -

Net cash used in financing activities (2,967,000) (4,021,250)

Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents (755,314) 4,615,857

Cash and cash equivalents at 1 June 30,898,790 26,282,933

Cash and cash equivalents at 31 May 9 30,143,476 30,898,790

The notes on pages 37 to 65 are an integral part of these financial statements.

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MAY 2010
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Note 2010 2009
RM RM

Assets

Investment in subsidiaries 5 30,768,431 30,649,524

Other investments 6 987,177 1,783,093

Total non-current assets 31,755,608 32,432,617

Receivables, deposits and prepayments 7 7,074,342 7,591,261

Current tax assets 133,411 110,412

Cash and cash equivalents 9 13,849,632 12,147,965

Total current assets 21,057,385 19,849,638

Total assets 52,812,993 52,282,255

Equity

Share capital 10 40,462,500 40,212,500

Reserves 11 12,068,113 11,795,315

Total equity 52,530,613 52,007,815

Liabilities

Payables and accruals 14 282,380 274,440

Total current liabilities 282,380 274,440

Total equity and liabilities 52,812,993 52,282,255

The notes on pages 37 to 65 are an integral part of these financial statements.

BALANCE SHEET
AT 31 MAY 2010
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Note 2010 2009
RM RM

Continuing operations

Revenue 15 4,577,633 5,560,394

Administrative expenses (516,432) (407,642)

Other operating expenses (405) (93,320)

Other operating income 342,808 183,392

Profit before tax 16 4,403,604 5,242,824

Tax expense 19 (1,087,913) (1,349,484)

Profit for the year 3,315,691 3,893,340

Dividends per ordinary share - net (sen) 21 8.00 10.00

The notes on pages 37 to 65 are an integral part of these financial statements.

INCOME STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MAY 2010
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Non-distributable Distributable
Share

Share Share  option Retained
Note capital premium reserve earnings Total

RM RM RM RM RM

At 1 June 2008 40,212,500 8,099,308 148,199 3,617,474 52,077,481

Profit for the year - - - 3,893,340 3,893,340

Share-based payments 13 - - 58,244 - 58,244

Transfer from share option
reserve for share options
lapsed - - (25,813) 25,813 -

Dividends 21 - - - (4,021,250) (4,021,250)

At 31 May 2009 40,212,500 8,099,308 180,630 3,515,377 52,007,815

Profit for the year - - - 3,315,691 3,315,691

Issuance of new ordinary
shares pursuant to ESOS 10 250,000 - - - 250,000

Share-based payments 13 - - 174,107 - 174,107

Transfer from share option
reserve for share options
exercised and lapsed - - (31,089) 31,089 -

Dividend 21 - - - (3,217,000) (3,217,000)

At 31 May 2010 40,462,500 8,099,308 323,648 3,645,157 52,530,613

The notes on pages 37 to 65 are an integral part of these financial statements.

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MAY 2010
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Note 2010 2009
RM RM

Cash flows from operating activities

Profit before tax from continuing operations 4,403,604 5,242,824

Adjustments for:

Dividend income 16 (4,577,633) (5,560,394)

Interest income 16 (316,443) (172,880)

(Gain)/Loss on disposal of other investments 6 (22,200) 92,078

Interest income from unit trust fund reinvested 16 (4,084) (10,492)

Share based payments 17 55,200 -

Operating loss before changes in working capital (461,556) (408,864)

Changes in working capital:

Receivables, deposits and prepayments 20,000 (19,685)

Payables and accruals 7,940 85,733

Cash used in operations (433,616) (342,816)

Dividends received 3,433,225 4,170,296

Tax refunded/(paid) 33,496 (16,933)

Net cash from operating activities 3,033,105 3,810,547

Cash flows from investing activities

Interest received 316,443 172,880

Acquisition of other investments - (582,295)

Proceeds from disposal of other investments 6 822,200 1,017,616

Net cash from investing activities 1,138,643 608,201

Cash flows from financing activities

Repayment of amount due from subsidiaries 496,919 7,040,532

   Dividends paid 21 (3,217,000) (4,021,250)

Proceeds from shares issued under ESOS 10 250,000 -

Net cash (used in)/from financing activities (2,470,081) 3,019,282

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 1,701,667 7,438,030

Cash and cash equivalents at 1 June 12,147,965 4,709,935

Cash and cash equivalents at 31 May 9 13,849,632 12,147,965

The notes on pages 37 to 65 are an integral part of these financial statements.

CASH FLOW STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MAY 2010



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A
N

N
U

A
L 

R
EP

O
R

T 
2

0
1

0
EU

R
O

S
P

A
N

 H
O

LD
IN

G
S

 B
ER

H
A

D
 (

3
5

1
9

2
7

-M
)

37

Eurospan Holdings Berhad is a public limited liability company, incorporated and domiciled in Malaysia and is listed
on the Main Market of the Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad. The addresses of its registered office and principal
place of business are as follows:

Registered office Principal place of business

35, 1st Floor 1168 Kampung Teluk
Jalan Kelisa Emas 1 Sungai Dua
Taman Kelisa Emas Kawasan Perusahaan Sungai Lokan
13700 Seberang Jaya 13800 Butterworth
Penang Penang

The consolidated financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 May 2010 comprise the Company and its
subsidiaries (together referred to as the Group).

The Company is principally engaged in the provision of management services and that of an investment holding
while the other Group entities are primarily involved in the manufacture and trading of furniture and wood-based
products and investment holding.

The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on 23 August 2010.

1. BASIS OF PREPARATION

(a) Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Financial Reporting Standards (FRS),
accounting principles generally accepted and the Companies Act, 1965 in Malaysia.

The Group and the Company have not applied the following accounting standards, amendments and
interpretations that have been issued by the Malaysian Accounting Standards Board (MASB) but are
not yet effective for the Group and the Company:

FRS effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2009

• FRS 8, Operating Segments

FRSs, Interpretations and amendments effective for annual periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2010

• FRS 4, Insurance Contracts *

• FRS 7, Financial Instruments: Disclosures

• FRS 101, Presentation of Financial Statements (revised)

• FRS 123, Borrowing Costs (revised) *

• FRS 139, Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement

• Amendments to FRS 1, First-time Adoption of Financial Reporting Standards

• Amendments to FRS 2, Share-based Payment: Vesting Conditions and Cancellations

• Amendments to FRS 7, Financial Instruments: Disclosures

• Amendments to FRS 101, Presentation of Financial Statements - Puttable Financial Instruments
and Obligations Arising on Liquidation *

• Amendments to FRS 127, Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements: Cost of an Investment
in a Subsidiary, Jointly Controlled Entity or Associate

• Amendments to FRS 132, Financial Instruments: Presentation
- Puttable Financial Instruments and Obligations Arising on Liquidation *
- Separation of Compound Instruments *

• Amendments to FRS 139, Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement
- Reclassification of Financial Assets
- Collective Assessment of Impairment for Banking Institutions *
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1. BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

(a) Statement of compliance (Continued)

• Improvements to FRSs (2009)

• IC Interpretation 9, Reassessment of Embedded Derivatives

• IC Interpretation 10, Interim Financial Reporting and Impairment

• IC Interpretation 11, FRS 2 - Group and Treasury Share Transactions

• IC Interpretation 13, Customer Loyalty Programmes *

• IC Interpretation 14, FRS 119 - The Limit on a Defined Benefit Asset, Minimum Funding
Requirements and Their Interaction *

Amendments effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 March 2010

• Amendments to FRS 132, Financial Instruments: Presentation - Classification of Rights Issues *

FRSs, Interpretations and amendments effective for annual periods beginning on
or after 1 July 2010

• FRS 1, First-time Adoption of Financial Reporting Standards (revised)

• FRS 3, Business Combinations (revised)

• FRS 127, Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements (revised)

• Amendments to FRS 2, Share-based Payment

• Amendments to FRS 5, Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations

• Amendments to FRS 138, Intangible Assets

• IC Interpretation 12, Service Concession Agreements #

• IC Interpretation 15, Agreements for the Construction of Real Estate #

• IC Interpretation 16, Hedges of a Net Investment in a Foreign Operation #

• IC Interpretation 17, Distribution of Non-cash Assets to Owners

• Amendments to IC Interpretation 9, Reassessment of Embedded Derivatives

Interpretations and amendments effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2011

• Amendments to FRS 1, First-time Adoption of Financial Reporting standards
- Limited Exemption from Comparative FRS 7 Disclosures for First-time Adopters
- Additional Exemptions for First-time Adopters

• Amendments to FRS 7, Financial Instruments: Disclosures - Improving Disclosures about Financial
Instruments

• Amendments to FRS 2, Group Cash-settled Share Based Payment

• IC Interpretation 4, Determining whether an Arrangement contains a Lease

• IC Interpretation 18, Transfers of Assets from Customers

The Group and the Company plan to apply the abovementioned standards, amendments and interpretations:

• from the annual period beginning 1 June 2010 for those standards, amendments or interpretations
that will be effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2009, 1 January 2010 and 1
March 2010, except for those marked with “*” which are not applicable to the Group and the
Company; and

• from the annual period beginning 1 June 2011 for those standards, amendments or interpretations
that will be effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2010 and 1 January 2011, except
for those marked with “#” which are not applicable to the Group and the Company.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

1. BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

(a) Statement of compliance (Continued)

The initial application of a standard, an amendment or an interpretation, which will be applied prospectively,
is not expected to have any financial impacts to the current and prior periods financial statements
upon their first adoption.

The impacts and disclosures as required by FRS 108.30(b), Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting
Estimates and Errors, in respect of applying FRS 7 and FRS 139 are not disclosed by virtue of the
exemptions given in these respective FRSs.

The impacts of initial application of a standard, an amendment or an interpretation, which will be applied
retrospectively, are disclosed below:

(i) FRS 8, Operating Segments

FRS 8 replaces FRS 1142004, Segment Reporting and requires the identification and reporting of
operating segments based on internal reports that are regularly reviewed by the chief operating
decision maker of the Group in order to allocate resources to the segment and to assess its
performance. Currently, the Group presents segment information in respect of its business and
geographical segments (see Note 25). The adoption of FRS 8 will not have any significant impact
on the financial statements of the Group other than expanded disclosure requirements, if any.

(ii) Improvements to FRSs (2009)
Improvements to FRSs (2009) contain various amendments that result in accounting changes for
presentation, recognition or measurement and disclosure purposes. Amendments that have
material impact are:

FRS 117, Leases

The amendments clarify the classification of lease of land and require entities with existing leases
of land and buildings to reassess the classification of land as finance or operating lease. Leasehold
land which in substance is a finance lease will be reclassified to property, plant and equipment.
The adoption of these amendments will result in a change in accounting policy which will be
applied retrospectively in accordance with the transitional provisions. This change in accounting
policy will result in reclassification of lease of land amounting to RM316,452 as at 1
June 2010 from prepaid lease payments to property, plant and equipment.

(iii) IC Interpretation 4, Determining whether an Agreement contains a Lease

IC Interpretation 4 provides guidance for determining whether certain arrangements are, or
contain, leases that are required to be accounted for in accordance with FRS 117, Leases. Where
an arrangement is within the scope of FRS 117, the Group applies FRS 117 in determining whether
the arrangement is a finance or an operating lease.

The adoption of IC Interpretation 4 will result in a change in accounting policy which will be
applied retrospectively in accordance with FRS 108, Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting
Estimates and Errors in which certain arrangements are to be accounted for as a finance lease.



A
N

N
U

A
L 

R
EP

O
R

T 
2

0
1

0
EU

R
O

S
P

A
N

 H
O

LD
IN

G
S

 B
ER

H
A

D
 (

3
5

1
9

2
7

-M
)

40

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

1. BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

(a) Statement of compliance (Continued)

(iv) IC Interpretation 10, Interim Financial Reporting and Impairment

IC Interpretation 10 prohibits the reversal of an impairment loss that has been recognised in an
interim period during a financial year in respect of the  following:

(a) goodwill;

(b) an investment in an equity instrument; or

(c) a financial asset carried at cost.

In accordance with the transitional provisions, the Group and the Company will apply IC
Interpretation 10 to goodwill, investments in equity instruments, and financial assets carried at
cost prospectively from the date the Group and the Company first applied the measurement
criteria of FRS 136, Impairment of Assets and FRS 139, Financial Instruments : Recognition and
Measurement respectively.

(b) Basis of measurement

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis other than as disclosed in
Note 2.

(c) Functional and presentation currency

These financial statements are presented in Ringgit Malaysia (“RM”), which is the Company’s functional
currency. All financial information presented is in RM unless otherwise stated.

(d) Use of estimates and judgements

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets,
liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised and in any future periods
affected.

There are no significant areas of estimation uncertainty and critical judgements in applying accounting
policies that have significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements.

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to the periods presented in these
financial statements, and have been applied consistently by Group entities, unless otherwise stated.

(a) Basis of consolidation

(i)  Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities, including unincorporated entities, controlled by the Group. Control exists
when the Group has the ability to exercise its power to govern the financial and operating policies
of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities. In assessing control, potential voting rights
that presently are exercisable are taken into account. Subsidiaries are consolidated using the
purchase method of accounting except for Eurospan Furniture Sdn. Bhd. (business combination
prior to 1 January 2006) which is accounted for using the pooling-of-interests method of accounting.

Under the purchase method of accounting, the financial statements of subsidiaries are included
in the consolidated financial statements from the date that control commences until the date
that control ceases.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(a) Basis of consolidation (Continued)

(i)  Subsidiaries (Continued)

Under the pooling-of-interests method of accounting, the results of entities or businesses under
common control are accounted for as if the acquisition had occurred at the beginning of the
earliest comparative period presented or, if later, at the date that common control was established.
The assets and liabilities acquired were recognised at the carrying amounts recognised previously
in the Group’s controlling shareholder’s consolidated financial statements. The difference between
the cost of acquisition and the nominal value of the shares acquired together with the share
premium are taken to merger reserve (or adjusted against any suitable reserve in the case of
debit differences). The other components of equity of the acquired entities are added to the
same components with Group equity.

Investments in subsidiaries are stated in the Company’s balance sheet at cost less any impairment
losses, unless the investment is classified as held for sale (or included in a disposal group that is
classified as held for sale).

(ii) Changes in Group composition

Where a subsidiary issues new equity shares to minority interests for cash consideration and
the issue price has been established at fair value, the reduction in the Group’s interests in the
subsidiary is accounted for as a disposal of equity interest with the corresponding gain or loss
recognised in the income statements.

When a group purchases a subsidiary’s equity shares from minority interests for cash consideration
and the purchase price has been established at fair value, the accretion of the Group’s interests
in the subsidiary is accounted for as a purchase of equity interest for which the purchase method
of accounting is applied.

The Group treats all other changes in group composition as equity transactions between the
Group and its minority shareholders. Any difference between the Group’s share of net assets
before and after the change, and any consideration received or paid, is adjusted to or against
Group reserves.

(iii) Transactions eliminated on consolidation

Intra-group balances and transactions, and any unrealised income and expenses arising from intra-
group transactions, are eliminated in preparing the consolidated financial statements.

(b) Foreign currency transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to the respective functional currencies of the Group
entities at exchange rates at the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies at the balance sheet date are retranslated to the functional currency at the
exchange rate at that date. Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
translated at exchange rates at the dates of the transactions except for those that are measured at
fair value, which are retranslated to the functional currency at the exchange rate at the date that the
fair value was determined. Foreign currency differences arising on retranslation are recognised in the
income statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(c) Property, plant and equipment

(i) Recognition and measurement

Items of property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses, if any.

Cost includes expenditures that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset and any
other costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to working condition for its intended use,
and the costs of dismantling and removing the items and restoring the site on which they are
located. The cost of self-constructed assets also includes the cost of materials and direct labour.
Purchased software that is integral to the functionality of the related equipment is capitalised
as part of that equipment.

The cost of property, plant and equipment recognised as a result of a business combination is
based on fair value at acquisition date. The fair value of property is the estimated amount for
which a property could be exchanged between a willing buyer and a willing seller in an arm’s
length transaction after proper marketing wherein the parties had each acted knowledgeably,
prudently and without compulsion. The fair value of other items of plant and equipment is based
on the quoted market prices for similar items.

When significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives,
they are accounted for as separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment.

Gains and losses on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment are determined by
comparing the proceeds from disposal with the carrying amount of property, plant and equipment
and are recognised net within “other operating income” or “other operating expenses” respectively
in the income statements.

(ii) Subsequent costs

The cost of replacing part of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in the carrying
amount of the item if it is probable that the future economic benefits embodied within the part
will flow to the Group and its cost can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced
part is derecognised. The costs of the day-to-day servicing of property, plant and equipment are
recognised in the income statements as incurred.

(iii) Depreciation

Depreciation is recognised in the income statements on a straight-line basis over the estimated
useful lives of each part of an item of property, plant and equipment. Leased assets are depreciated
over the shorter of the lease term and their useful lives unless it is reasonably certain that the
Group will obtain ownership by the end of the lease term. Freehold land is not depreciated.
Property, plant and equipment under construction are not depreciated until the assets are ready
for their intended use.

The depreciation rates for the current and comparative periods based on their estimated useful
lives are as follows:

Buildings 2%

Plant, machinery and factory equipment 10% and 20%

Furniture, fittings, renovation and office equipment 10%

Motor vehicles 10%

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reassessed at the balance sheet date.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(d) Lease assets

Operating lease

Leases, where the Group does not assume substantially all the risks and rewards of the ownership are
classified as operating leases and, except for property interest held under operating lease, the leased
assets are not recognised on the Group’s balance sheet.

Leasehold land that normally has an indefinite economic life and title is not expected to pass to the
lessee by the end of the lease term is treated as an operating lease. The payment made on entering
into or acquiring a leasehold land is accounted for as prepaid lease payments.

Payments made under operating leases are recognised in the income statements on a straight-line basis
over the term of the lease. Lease incentives received are recognised as an integral part of the total
lease expense, over the term of the lease.

(e) Goodwill

Goodwill arises on business combinations and is measured at cost less any accumulated impairment
losses.

For acquisitions prior to 1 January 2006, goodwill represents the excess of the cost of the acquisition
over the Group’s interest in the fair values of the net identifiable assets and liabilities.

For business acquisitions beginning from 1 January 2006, goodwill represents the excess of the cost
of the acquisition over the Group’s interest in the net fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities of the acquiree.

Any excess of the Group’s interest in the net fair value of acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities over the cost of acquisition is recognised immediately in income statements.

(f) Investments in equity securities

Investments in equity securities are recognised initially at fair value plus attributable transaction costs.

Subsequent to initial recognition:

• Investments in non-current equity securities other than investments in subsidiaries are stated at
cost less allowance for diminution in value,

• All current investments are carried at the lower of cost and market value, determined on an
individual investment basis by category of investments.

Where in the opinion of the Directors, there is a decline other than temporary in the value of non-
current equity securities other than investment in subsidiaries, the allowance for diminution in value
is recognised as an expense in the financial year in which the decline is identified.

On disposal of an investment, the difference between net disposal proceeds and its carrying amount
is recognised in the income statements.

All investments in equity securities are accounted for using settlement date accounting. Settlement
date accounting refers to:

a) the recognition of an asset on the day it is received by the entity, and

b) the derecognition on an asset and recognition of any gain or loss on disposal on the date it is
delivered.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(g) Impairment of assets

The carrying amounts of assets except for inventories and financial assets (other than investment in
subsidiaries) are reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of
impairment. If any such indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. For goodwill
that has indefinite useful life, the recoverable amount is estimated usually at each reporting date.

The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit is the greater of its value in use and its
fair value less costs to sell. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted
to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. For the purpose of impairment testing, assets
are grouped together into the smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows from continuing
use that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or groups of assets (the “cash-
generating unit”). The goodwill acquired in a business combination, for the purpose of impairment
testing, is allocated to cash-generating units that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the
combination.

An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or its cash-generating unit exceeds
its recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognised in the income statements. Impairment losses
recognised in respect of cash-generating units are allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any
goodwill allocated to the units and then to reduce the carrying amount of the other assets in the unit
(groups of units) on a pro rata basis.

An impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not reversed. In respect of other assets, impairment losses
recognised in prior periods are assessed at each reporting date for any indications that the loss has
decreased or no longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable amount. An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that
the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined,
net of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss had been recognised. Reversals of impairment
losses are credited to the income statements in the year in which the reversals are recognised.

(h) Receivables

Receivables are initially recognised at their cost when the contractual right to receive cash or another
financial asset from another entity is established.

Subsequent to initial recognition, receivables are stated at cost less allowance for doubtful debts.

Receivables are not held for the purpose of trading.

(i) Inventories

Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value. The cost of inventories is based
on the first-in, first-out principle and includes expenditure incurred in acquiring the inventories and
bringing them to their existing location and condition. In the case of work-in-progress and manufactured
inventories, cost includes an appropriate share of production overheads based on normal operating
capacity. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the
estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

(j) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash on hand, balances and deposits with banks, highly liquid
investments and short term funds with maturity of less than three months which have an insignificant
risk of changes in value. For the purpose of the cash flow statements, cash and cash equivalents are
presented net of bank overdrafts and pledged deposits, if any.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(k) Payables

Payables are measured initially and subsequently at cost. Payables are recognised when there is a
contractual obligation to deliver cash or another financial asset to another entity.

(l) Provisions

A provision is recognised if, as a result of a past event, the Group has a present legal or constructive
obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will
be required to settle the obligation. Provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash
flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the liability.

(m) Contingent liabilities

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required, or the amount cannot
be estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities
unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.

Where the Company enters into financial guarantee contracts to guarantee the indebtedness of other
companies within its group, the Company considers these to be insurance arrangements, and accounts
for them as such. In this respect, the Company treats the guarantee contract as a contingent liability
until such time as it becomes probable that the Company will be required to make a payment under
the guarantee.

(n) Equity instruments

All equity instruments are stated at cost on initial recognition and are not re-measured subsequently.

Issue expenses

Incremental costs directly attributable to issue of equity instruments are recognised as a deduction
from equity.

(o) Revenue recognition

(i) Goods sold

Revenue from the sale of goods is measured at fair value of the consideration received or receivable,
net of returns and allowances, trade discounts and volume rebates. Revenue is recognised when
the significant risks and rewards of ownership have been transferred to the buyer, recovery of
the consideration is probable, the associated costs and possible return of goods can be estimated
reliably, and there is no continuing management involvement with the goods.

(ii) Dividend income

Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive payment is established.

(p) Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues, using the effective interest method.

(q) Employee benefits

(i) Short term employee benefits

Short term employee benefit obligations in respect of salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave
and sick leave are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed as the related service is
provided.

The Group’s contributions to the statutory pension funds are charged to the income statements
in the year to which they relate. Once the contributions have been paid, the Group has no further
payment obligations.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(q) Employee benefits (Continued)

(ii) Share-based payment transactions
The grant date fair value of options granted to employees is recognised as an employee expense,
with a corresponding increase in equity, over the period that the employees become unconditionally
entitled to the options. The amount recognised as an expense is adjusted to reflect the actual
number of share options that vest.

The fair value of employee share options is measured using a binomial lattice model. Measurement
inputs include share price on measurement date, exercise price of the instrument, expected volatility
(based on weighted average historic volatility adjusted for changes expected due to publicly available
information), weighted average expected life of the instruments (based on historical experience
and general option holder behaviour), expected dividends, and the risk-free interest rate (based
on government bonds). Service and non-market performance conditions attached to the transactions
are not taken into account in determining fair value.

(r) Tax expense

Tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Tax expense is recognised in the income statements
except to the extent that it relates to items recognised directly in equity, in which case it is recognised
in equity.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted
or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of
previous years.

Deferred tax is recognised using the balance sheet method, providing for temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation
purposes. Deferred tax is not recognised for the following temporary differences:

i) the initial recognition of goodwill,

ii) the initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a transaction that is not a business combination and
that affects neither accounting nor taxable profit (tax loss).

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to the temporary differences
when they reverse, based on the laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance
sheet date.

Deferred tax liability is recognised for all taxable temporary differences. A deferred tax asset is
recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which
temporary difference can be utilised. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realised.

Unutilised reinvestment allowance is treated as tax base of assets and is recognised as a reduction of
tax expense as and when it is utilised.

(s) Earnings per ordinary share

The Group presents basic and diluted earnings per ordinary share (“EPS”) data for its ordinary shares.
Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the
Company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the period. Diluted
EPS is determined by adjusting the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders and the weighted
average number of ordinary shares outstanding for the effects of all dilutive potential ordinary shares,
which comprise share options granted to employees.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(t) Segment reporting

A segment is a distinguishable component of the Group that is engaged either in providing products
or services (business segment), or in providing products or services within a particular economic
environment (geographical segment), which is subject to risks and rewards that are different from
those of other segments.

(u) Derivative financial instruments

The Group holds derivative financial instruments to hedge its foreign currency and interest rate risk
exposures.

Forward foreign exchange contracts are accounted for on an equivalent basis as the underlying assets,
liabilities or net positions. Any profit or loss arising is recognised on the same basis as that arising from
the related assets, liabilities or net positions.

(v) Research and development

Expenditure on research activities, undertaken with the prospect of gaining new scientific or technical
knowledge and understanding, is recognised in the income statements as an expense as incurred.

Expenditure on development activities, whereby research findings are applied to a plan or design for
the production of new or substantially improved products and processes, is capitalised if the product
or process is technically and commercially feasible and the Group has sufficient resources to complete
development.

The expenditure capitalised includes the cost of materials, direct labour and an appropriate proportion
of overheads. Other development expenditure is recognised in the income statements as an expense
as incurred. Capitalised development expenditure is stated at cost less any accumulated amortisation
and any accumulated impairment losses.



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

A
N

N
U

A
L 

R
EP

O
R

T 
2

0
1

0
EU

R
O

S
P

A
N

 H
O

LD
IN

G
S

 B
ER

H
A

D
 (

3
5

1
9

2
7

-M
)

48

3.
P

R
O

P
E

R
T

Y
, P

L
A

N
T

 A
N

D
 E

Q
U

IP
M

E
N

T
 -

 G
R

O
U

P

F
ur

ni
tu

re
,

P
la

nt
,

fit
ti

ng
s,

m
ac

hi
ne

ry
re

no
va

ti
o

n
C

ap
it

al
F

re
eh

o
ld

an
d 

fa
ct

o
ry

an
d 

o
ff

ic
e

M
o

to
r

ex
pe

nd
it

ur
e-

la
nd

B
ui

ld
in

gs
eq

ui
pm

en
t

eq
ui

pm
en

t
ve

hi
cl

es
in

-p
ro

gr
es

s
T

o
ta

l
R

M
R

M
R

M
R

M
R

M
R

M
R

M

C
o

st

A
t 

1 
Ju

ne
 2

00
8

4,
83

7,
49

9
13

,8
25

,2
06

33
,8

56
,3

55
2,

42
4,

42
6

2,
96

9,
62

9
-

57
,9

13
,1

15

A
dd

iti
on

s
-

-
34

3,
90

5
97

,8
15

16
9,

25
7

84
7,

24
0

1,
45

8,
21

7

D
is

po
sa

ls
-

-
(2

59
,1

52
)

(7
,6

88
)

(4
49

,4
28

)
-

(7
16

,2
68

)

W
ri

te
-o

ff
-

-
(3

50
,7

70
)

(1
56

,8
05

)
(1

,5
53

)
-

(5
09

,1
28

)

A
t 

31
 M

ay
 2

00
9/

1 
Ju

ne
 2

00
9

4,
83

7,
49

9
13

,8
25

,2
06

33
,5

90
,3

38
2,

35
7,

74
8

2,
68

7,
90

5
84

7,
24

0
58

,1
45

,9
36

A
dd

iti
on

s
-

-
1,

05
8,

02
3

21
,0

41
-

34
8,

32
8

1,
42

7,
39

2

D
is

po
sa

ls
-

-
(6

5,
80

0)
-

(1
75

,8
45

)
-

(2
41

,6
45

)

W
ri

te
-o

ff
-

-
(1

9,
00

0)
(4

,1
00

)
-

-
(2

3,
10

0)

R
ec

la
ss

ifi
ca

tio
n

-
-

84
7,

24
0

-
-

(8
47

,2
40

)
-

A
t 

31
 M

ay
 2

01
0

4,
83

7,
49

9
13

,8
25

,2
06

35
,4

10
,8

01
2,

37
4,

68
9

2,
51

2,
06

0
34

8,
32

8
59

,3
08

,5
83



A
N

N
U

A
L 

R
EP

O
R

T 
2

0
1

0

49

EU
R

O
S

P
A

N
 H

O
LD

IN
G

S
 B

ER
H

A
D

 (
3

5
1

9
2

7
-M

)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
3.

P
R

O
P

E
R

T
Y

, P
L

A
N

T
 A

N
D

 E
Q

U
IP

M
E

N
T

 -
 G

R
O

U
P

 (
C

o
nt

in
ue

d)

F
ur

ni
tu

re
,

P
la

nt
,

fit
ti

ng
s,

m
ac

hi
ne

ry
re

no
va

ti
o

n
C

ap
it

al
F

re
eh

o
ld

an
d 

fa
ct

o
ry

an
d 

o
ff

ic
e

M
o

to
r

ex
pe

nd
it

ur
e-

la
nd

B
ui

ld
in

gs
eq

ui
pm

en
t

eq
ui

pm
en

t
ve

hi
cl

es
in

-p
ro

gr
es

s
T

o
ta

l
R

M
R

M
R

M
R

M
R

M
R

M
R

M

A
cc

um
ul

at
ed

 d
ep

re
ci

at
io

n

A
t 

1 
Ju

ne
 2

00
8

-
2,

65
5,

46
5

23
,9

97
,9

33
1,

56
1,

83
3

1,
42

5,
51

6
-

29
,6

40
,7

47

C
ha

rg
e 

fo
r 

th
e 

ye
ar

 (
N

ot
e 

16
)

-
27

6,
50

4
2,

35
1,

40
0

18
7,

49
0

23
6,

69
0

-
3,

05
2,

08
4

D
is

po
sa

ls
-

-
(2

59
,1

52
)

(5
,8

71
)

(3
85

,9
19

)
-

(6
50

,9
42

)

W
ri

te
-o

ff
-

-
(3

14
,0

39
)

(1
38

,2
36

)
(1

,5
53

)
-

(4
53

,8
28

)

A
t 

31
 M

ay
 2

00
9/

1 
Ju

ne
 2

00
9

-
2,

93
1,

96
9

25
,7

76
,1

42
1,

60
5,

21
6

1,
27

4,
73

4
-

31
,5

88
,0

61

C
ha

rg
e 

fo
r 

th
e 

ye
ar

 (
N

ot
e 

16
)

-
27

6,
50

6
2,

20
5,

57
0

14
5,

52
8

22
7,

92
4

-
2,

85
5,

52
8

D
is

po
sa

ls
-

-
(5

6,
47

8)
-

(9
6,

71
5)

-
(1

53
,1

93
)

W
ri

te
-o

ff
-

-
(1

9,
00

0)
(4

,1
00

)
-

-
(2

3,
10

0)

A
t 

31
 M

ay
 2

01
0

-
3,

20
8,

47
5

27
,9

06
,2

34
1,

74
6,

64
4

1,
40

5,
94

3
-

34
,2

67
,2

96

C
ar

ry
in

g 
am

o
un

ts

A
t 

1 
Ju

ne
 2

00
8

4,
83

7,
49

9
11

,1
69

,7
41

9,
85

8,
42

2
86

2,
59

3
1,

54
4,

11
3

-
28

,2
72

,3
68

A
t 

31
 M

ay
 2

00
9/

1 
Ju

ne
 2

00
9

4,
83

7,
49

9
10

,8
93

,2
37

7,
81

4,
19

6
75

2,
53

2
1,

41
3,

17
1

84
7,

24
0

26
,5

57
,8

75

A
t 

31
 M

ay
 2

01
0

4,
83

7,
49

9
10

,6
16

,7
31

7,
50

4,
56

7
62

8,
04

5
1,

10
6,

11
7

34
8,

32
8

25
,0

41
,2

87



A
N

N
U

A
L 

R
EP

O
R

T 
2

0
1

0
EU

R
O

S
P

A
N

 H
O

LD
IN

G
S

 B
ER

H
A

D
 (

3
5

1
9

2
7

-M
)

50

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

4. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS

Unexpired period
more than 50 years

RM

Group

Cost

At 1 June 2008/31 May 2009/1 June 2009/31 May 2010 383,733

Amortisation

At 1 June 2008 58,251

Amortisation for the year (Note 16) 4,515

At 31 May 2009/1 June 2009 62,766

Amortisation for the year (Note 16) 4,515

At 31 May 2010 67,281

Carrying amounts

At 1 June 2008 325,482

At 31 May 2009/1 June 2009 320,967

At 31 May 2010 316,452

5. INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES - COMPANY

2010 2009
RM RM

Unquoted shares, at cost 30,413,939 30,413,939

Add: Share-based payments allocated to subsidiaries 354,492 235,585

30,768,431 30,649,524

Details of the subsidiaries are as follows:

Effective
ownership

Name of subsidiaries interest Principal Activities
2010 2009

% %

Eurospan Furniture Sdn. Bhd. 100 100 Manufacturing and trading of furniture and wood-
based products

Dynaspan Furniture Sdn. Bhd. 100 100 Manufacturing of furniture and wood-based products

Euroswood Furniture Sdn. Bhd. 100 100 Investment holding

Dynaword Sdn. Bhd. 100 100 Investment holding

All the above subsidiaries are incorporated in Malaysia and audited by KPMG.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

6. OTHER INVESTMENTS

Group and Company
2010 2009

RM RM
At cost

Unit trust funds 387,177 883,093

Structured investment products - unquoted 600,000 900,000

987,177 1,783,093

Market value

Unit trust funds 390,000 887,000

Details of other investments disposed during the year are as follows:

Group and Company
2010 2009

RM RM

Proceeds from disposal 822,200 1,017,616

Carrying amount of other investments disposed (800,000) (1,109,694)

Gain/(Loss) from disposal of other investments 22,200 (92,078)

7. RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS

Note Group Company
2010 2009 2010 2009

RM RM RM RM

Trade

Trade receivables 7.1 1,793,497 1,868,764 - -

Non-trade

Amount due
from subsidiaries 7.2 - - 7,074,342 7,571,261

Other receivables 700 230 - -

Deposits 98,353 119,603 - 20,000

Prepayments 263,703 300,415 - -

362,756 420,248 7,074,342 7,591,261

2,156,253 2,289,012 7,074,342 7,591,261

7.1 Analysis of foreign currency exposure for significant receivables

Significant receivables outstanding at year end that are not in the functional currencies of the Group
entities are as follows:

Functional Foreign 2010 2009
currency currency RM RM

RM USD 1,252,552 1,215,455

7.2 Amount due from subsidiaries

The non-trade receivables due from subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

8. INVENTORIES - GROUP

2010 2009
RM RM

At cost

Raw materials 4,867,981 5,641,014

Work-in-progress 5,016,654 4,500,343

Manufactured inventories 2,140,335 965,680

12,024,970 11,107,037

9. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Note Group Company
2010 2009 2010 2009

RM RM RM RM

Short term funds 9.1 6,219,132 6,027,643 6,181,823 5,991,253

Deposits with
licensed banks 22,921,973 22,991,651 7,603,184 6,100,000

Cash and bank balances 1,002,371 1,879,496 64,625 56,712

9.2 30,143,476 30,898,790 13,849,632 12,147,965

9.1 Short term funds

Short term funds represent investment in fixed income trusts and money market which can be redeemed
within a period of less than 30 days.

9.2 Analysis of foreign currency exposure for significant cash and cash equivalents

Significant cash and cash equivalents outstanding at year end that are not in the functional currencies
of the Group entities are as follows:

Functional Foreign 2010 2009
currency currency RM RM

RM USD 231,590 994,718

RM Euro 26,345 2,937

10. SHARE CAPITAL - GROUP AND COMPANY

2010 2009
Number Number

RM of shares RM of shares

Authorised :

Ordinary shares of RM1 each 50,000,000 50,000,000 50,000,000 50,000,000

Issued and fully paid:

Ordinary shares of RM1 each

Balance at 1 June 40,212,500 40,212,500 40,212,500 40,212,500

Issued under ESOS,
for cash at RM1 per share 250,000 250,000 - -

Balance at 31 May 40,462,500 40,462,500 40,212,500 40,212,500
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

11. RESERVES

Group Company
2010 2009 2010 2009

RM RM RM RM

Non-distributable

Share premium 8,099,308 8,099,308 8,099,308 8,099,308

Share option reserve 323,648 180,630 323,648 180,630

8,422,956 8,279,938 8,422,956 8,279,938

Distributable

Retained earnings 15,244,287 18,070,704 3,645,157 3,515,377

23,667,243 26,350,642 12,068,113 11,795,315

The share premium account arose from the public issue of the Company’s shares and the issue of shares
pursuant to the Company’s ESOS and is presented net of share issue expenses.

The share option reserve comprises the cumulative value of employee services received for the issue of
share options. When the option is exercised, the amount from the share option reserve is transferred to
share premium. When the share options expire, the amount from the share option reserve is transferred
to retained earnings.

12. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES

The recognised deferred tax liabilities are as follows:

Group
2010 2009

RM RM

Property, plant and equipment - capital allowances 1,856,192 2,068,393

Provisions (27,009) (139,369)

Unabsorbed capital allowances (244,497) -

Unutilised business losses (14,904) -

1,569,782 1,929,024

The component and movement of deferred tax liabilities during the year are as follows:

Recognised Recognised
in the in the

income income
At 1 June statement At 31 May statement At 31 May

2008 (Note 19) 2009 (Note 19) 2010
RM RM RM RM RM

Property, plant
and equipment

- Capital
allowances 2,279,170 (210,777) 2,068,393 (212,201) 1,856,192

Provisions (178,538) 39,169 (139,369) 112,360 (27,009)

Unabsorbed
capital allowances - - - (244,497) (244,497)

Unutilised
business losses - - - (14,904) (14,904)

2,100,632 (171,608) 1,929,024 (359,242) 1,569,782
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

13. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS - GROUP AND COMPANY

The Group offers share options over ordinary shares to Directors and other employees with more than 1
year of service for Employees’ Share Option Scheme (“ESOS”). The contractual life of ESOS is 5 years
commencing from 30 December 2004.

The Employees’ Share Option Scheme of the Company which is governed by its by-laws expiring on 29
December 2009, was approved by the shareholders of the Company at the Extraordinary General Meeting
held on 27 July 2009 for an extended period of five years from 29 December 2009 to 29 December 2014.

Details of grants are as follows:

Grant date Number of options

24 January 2005 4,508,000

9 February 2005 6,000

10 April 2005 50,000

10 May 2005 65,000

10 July 2005 76,000

10 August 2005 26,000

10 October 2005 26,000

10 November 2005 45,000

10 December 2005 54,000

10 January 2006 152,000

10 February 2006 38,000

10 March 2006 41,000

10 April 2006 12,000

10 May 2006 24,000

10 June 2006 73,000

10 August 2006 74,000

10 September 2006 71,000

10 October 2006 6,000

10 November 2006 33,000

10 January 2007 71,000

10 February 2007 51,000

10 March 2007 44,000

10 April 2007 16,000

10 May 2007 44,000

10 June 2007 28,000

10 July 2007 12,000

10 August 2007 18,000

10 September 2007 36,000

10 October 2007 12,000

10 November 2007 36,000

10 December 2007 33,000

10 January 2008 62,000

10 February 2008 38,000

10 March 2008 64,000

10 April 2008 52,000
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

13. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS - GROUP AND COMPANY (Continued)

Grant date Number of options

10 May 2008 86,000

10 June 2008 120,000

10 July 2008 61,000

10 October 2008 6,000

10 November 2008 9,000

10 December 2008 46,000

15 December 2009 1,922,000

15 March 2010 24,000

The number and weighted average exercise prices of share options are as follows:

2010 2009
Weighted Weighted

average average
exercise Number of exercise Number of

price options price options
RM RM

Outstanding at 1 June 1.00 3,621,500 1.00 3,783,000

Granted during the year 1.00 1,946,000 1.00 242,000

Lapsed due to resignation 1.00 (534,000) 1.00 (403,500)

Options exercised 1.00 (250,000) - -

Outstanding at 31 May 1.00 4,783,500 1.00 3,621,500

Exercisable at 31 May 4,362,000 3,621,500

The options outstanding at 31 May 2010 have an exercise price of RM1.00 and a weighted contractual life
of 4.58 years.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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13. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS - GROUP AND COMPANY (Continued)

Employee expenses 2010 2009
RM RM

Share options granted in 2005 3,303 -

Share options granted in 2006 818 483

Share options granted in 2007 (11,818) 3,879

Share options granted in 2008 (32,013) 29,242

Share options granted in 2009 (5,600) 24,640

Share options granted in 2010 219,417 -

Total expense recognised as share-based payments 174,107 58,244

14. PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

Note Group Company
2010 2009 2010 2009

RM RM RM RM

Trade

Trade payables 14.1 3,888,146 3,120,555 - -

Non-trade

Other payables 14.2 1,081,448 543,764 - 200

Accrued expenses 697,062 1,143,105 282,380 274,240

1,778,510 1,686,869 282,380 274,440

5,666,656 4,807,424 282,380 274,440

14.1 Analysis of foreign currency exposure for significant payables

Significant payables outstanding at year end that are not in the functional currency of the Group
entities are as follows:

Functional Foreign 2010 2009
currency currency RM RM

RM USD - 98,537

14.2 Other payables

Included in other payables of the Group and the Company is an amount of RM Nil (2009 : RM1,400)
and RM Nil (2009 : RM200) respectively payable to its substantial shareholders, in which the Directors
have substantial financial interests.

15. REVENUE

Group

Revenue represents the invoiced value of goods sold less discounts and returns.

Company

Revenue represents dividend income received.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

16. PROFIT BEFORE TAX

Profit before tax is arrived at:

Group Company
2010 2009 2010 2009

RM RM RM RM

After charging:

Auditors’ remuneration:

- Statutory audit by KPMG

- Current year 45,000 40,000 12,000 11,000

- Prior year 5,000 - 1,000 -

- Other services by KPMG

- Current year 3,000 1,000 - 200

- Prior years - 11,200 - 9,000

Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment (Note 3) 2,855,528 3,052,084 - -

Amortisation of prepaid
lease payments (Note 4) 4,515 4,515 - -

Plant and equipment written off - 55,300 - -

Directors of the Company

- fees 330,000 330,000 240,000 240,000

- others 1,205,658 834,818 92,720 23,244

Other Directors

- fees 60,000 61,250 - -

- others 573,696 453,195 - -

Research and development
expenditure 838,833 767,984 - -

Loss on foreign exchange (net)

- unrealised 50,108 262 - -

Loss on disposal of other investments - 92,078 - 92,078

and crediting:

Dividend income from
subsidiaries (unquoted) - - 4,577,633 5,560,394

Gain on disposal of
plant and equipment 2,678 34,473 - -

Gain on disposal of
other investments 22,200 - 22,200 -

Interest income 541,351 546,589 316,443 172,880

Interest income
from unit trust funds 4,084 10,492 4,084 10,492

Gain on foreign exchange (net)

- realised 213,986 2,308,742 - -

The estimated monetary value of benefits receivable by executive Directors of the Group other than in cash
amounted to RM49,883 (2009 : RM64,560).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

17. KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL COMPENSATION

The key management personnel compensations are as follows:

Group Company
2010 2009 2010 2009

RM RM RM RM
Directors of the Company

- Fees 330,000 330,000 240,000 240,000

- Remuneration 1,019,772 834,818 37,520 23,244

Other Directors

- Fees 60,000 61,250 - -

- Remuneration 573,696 453,195 - -

Total short-term employee benefits 1,983,468 1,679,263 277,520 263,244

Share-based payments 185,886 - 55,200 -

2,169,354 1,679,263 332,720 263,244

There are no other key management personnel apart from the Directors of the Group entities, having
authority and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the entity either directly
or indirectly.

18. EMPLOYEE INFORMATION
Group Company

2010 2009 2010 2009
RM RM RM RM

Personnel expenses
(excluding key management
personnel) 11,885,980 10,939,406 - -

18.1 Personnel expenses of the Group include contributions to the Employees’ Provident Fund of RM903,345
(2009 : RM838,496).

18.2 Personnel expenses of the Group include share-based payments of RM174,107 (2009 : RM58,244).

19. TAX EXPENSE

Recognised in the income statements

Group Company
2010 2009 2010 2009

RM RM RM RM
Current tax expense

- Current year 207,638 740,888 1,087,452 1,323,299

- Prior years      (3,526) (749) 461 26,185

Total current tax 204,112 740,139 1,087,913 1,349,484

Deferred tax expense

- Current year (355,353) (171,178) - -

- Prior year (3,889) (430) - -

Total deferred tax (Note 12) (359,242) (171,608) - -

Total tax expense (155,130) 568,531 1,087,913 1,349,484



A
N

N
U

A
L 

R
EP

O
R

T 
2

0
1

0

61

EU
R

O
S

P
A

N
 H

O
LD

IN
G

S
 B

ER
H

A
D

 (
3

5
1

9
2

7
-M

)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

19. TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

Recognised in the income statements (Continued)

Group Company
2010 2009 2010 2009

RM RM RM RM

Profit for the year 359,494 3,368,249 3,315,691 3,893,340

Total tax expense (155,130) 568,531 1,087,913 1,349,484

Profit excluding tax 204,364 3,936,780 4,403,604 5,242,824

Tax at Malaysian tax rate of 25% 51,091 984,195 1,100,901 1,310,706

Non-deductible expenses 111,054 101,935 40,765 52,990

Tax exempt income (54,444) (61,705) (54,214) (40,397)

Tax incentives (254,710) (478,033) - -

Others (706) 23,318 - -

(147,715) 569,710 1,087,452 1,323,299

(Over)/Under provision
in prior years (7,415) (1,179) 461 26,185

(155,130) 568,531 1,087,913 1,349,484

20. BASIC EARNINGS PER ORDINARY SHARE

Basic earnings per ordinary share

The calculation of basic earnings per ordinary share was based on the profit attributable to ordinary
shareholders of RM359,494 (2009 : RM3,368,249) and a weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding during the financial year of 40,233,333 (2009 : 40,212,500).

2010 2009

Issued ordinary shares at 1 June 40,212,500 40,212,500

Effect of shares issued during the year 20,833 -

Weighted average number of ordinary shares at 31 May 40,233,333 40,212,500

Diluted earnings per ordinary share

The calculation of diluted earnings per ordinary share was based on the profit attributable to ordinary
shareholders of RM359,494 (2009 : RM3,368,249) and a weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding during the year as calculated below:

2010 2009

Weighted average number of ordinary shares at 31 May 40,233,333 40,212,500

Dilution impact of unexercised share options (337,107) (895,964)

Weighted average number of ordinary shares (diluted) at 31 May 39,896,226 39,316,536

The fully diluted earnings per ordinary share for the financial year ended 31 May 2010 is the same as the
basic earnings per ordinary share as the effect of anti-dilutive potential ordinary shares is ignored in calculating
diluted earnings per ordinary share in accordance with FRS 133, Earnings per share.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

21. DIVIDENDS - GROUP AND COMPANY

Dividends recognised in the current year by the Company are:

S e n
per share Total Date of

(net of tax) amount payment
RM

2010

Final 2009 ordinary 8.00 3,217,000 26 November 2009

2009

Interim 2009 ordinary 3.00 1,206,375 5 March 2009

Final 2008 ordinary 7.00 2,814,875 5 December 2008

4,021,250

After the balance sheet date, the following dividend was proposed by the Directors. This dividend will be
recognised in subsequent financial reports upon approval by the shareholders.

Sen per
share Total

(net of tax) amount
RM RM

Final ordinary 8.00 3,237,000

22. CONTINGENT LIABILITY, UNSECURED - COMPANY

2010 2009
RM RM

Corporate guarantees issued to licensed banks
for banking facilities granted to subsidiaries 17,900,000 18,650,000

23. CAPITAL COMMITMENT - GROUP

2010 2009
RM RM

Plant and equipment - contracted but not provided for 125,000 127,000

24. RELATED PARTIES

24.1 For the purposes of these financial statements, parties are considered to be related to the Group
or the Company if the Group or the Company has the ability, directly or indirectly, to control the
party or exercise significant influence over the party in making financial and operating decisions, or
vice versa, or where the Group or the Company and the party are subject to common control or
common significant influence. Related parties may be individuals or other entities. Related parties
include the following:

i) The Company has a controlling related party relationship with its subsidiaries as disclosed in
Note 5.

ii) The Company has a controlling related party relationship with its substantial shareholder, TBHL
Holdings Sdn. Bhd. in which Messrs. Guan Kok Beng, Guan Kim Heng and Guan Kim Loong have
substantial financial interests.

iii) Key management personnel are defined as those persons having authority and responsibility for
planning, directing and controlling the activities of the Group either directly or indirectly. The
key management personnel include all the Directors of the Group.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

24. RELATED PARTIES (Continued)

24.2 Significant transactions with related parties

There were no significant transactions with related parties during the financial year other than the
following:

i) Remuneration package paid to the Directors and key management personnel in accordance with
the terms and conditions of their appointment.

ii) Share options granted to Directors and key management personnel.

iii) Dividend paid to TBHL Holdings Sdn. Bhd.

iv) Sale of a motor vehicle to the past Director of a subsidiary at RM79,130.

v) Gratuity of RM80,000 paid to the past Director of a subsidiary.

25. SEGMENT REPORTING - GROUP

Segment information is presented in respect of the Group’s business and geographical segments. The primary
format, business segments, is based on the Group’s management and internal reporting structure.

Segment results, assets and liabilities include items directly attributable to a segment as well as those that
can be allocated on a reasonable basis. Unallocated items comprise mainly interest-earning assets and related
revenue, loans, borrowings and related expenses, corporate assets and head office expenses, and tax assets
and liabilities.

Segment capital expenditure is the total cost incurred during the year to acquire property, plant and equipment,
and intangible assets other than goodwill.

Business segments

The Group is principally engaged in the manufacturing and trading of furniture and wood-based products.
Business segment information has therefore not been prepared as the Group’s revenue, operating profit,
assets employed, capital expenditure, depreciation and amortisation and non-cash expenses are mainly
confined to one business segment.

Geographical segments

The business segment is managed in one principal geographical area namely Malaysia.

In presenting information on the basis of geographical segments, segment revenue is based on the geographical
location of customers. Segment assets are based on the geographical location of assets.

Malaysia Asia Europe America Others Consolidated
RM RM RM RM RM RM

2010

Revenue
from external
customers
by location
of customers 463,701 11,800,019 30,325,099 10,840,503 8,698,489 62,127,811

Segment assets
by location
of assets 70,669,615 - - - - 70,669,615

Capital
expenditure
by location
of assets 1,427,392 - - - - 1,427,392
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

25. SEGMENT REPORTING - GROUP (Continued)

Malaysia Asia Europe America Others Consolidated
RM RM RM RM RM RM

2009

Revenue from
external
customers by
location of
customers 27,841 12,825,400 33,806,414 7,918,544 8,218,620 62,796,819

Segment assets
by location
of assets 72,956,774 - - - - 72,956,774

Capital
expenditure
by location
of assets 1,458,217 - - - - 1,458,217

26. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 

Financial risk management and objectives

Exposure to credit, interest rate, currency risk and liquidity risk arises in the normal course of the Group’s
business. Derivative financial instruments are used to hedge exposure to fluctuations in foreign exchange
rates.

Credit risk

Exposure to credit risk is monitored on an ongoing basis.

The Group and the Company have no significant concentrations of credit risk at the balance sheet date
other than amount due from subsidiaries (Note 7). The maximum exposure to credit risk for the Group
and for the Company is represented by the carrying amount of each financial asset in the balance sheet.

Interest rate risk

The Group does not incur any interest bearing debts. Therefore, its exposure to interest rate risk is minimal.

The investments in financial assets are mainly short term in nature and are mostly placed in fixed deposits
and short term deposits or occasionally, in short term funds which yield better returns than cash at bank.

Foreign currency risk

The Group incurs foreign currency risk mainly on sales which are denominated in a currency other than
Ringgit Malaysia.  The currencies giving rise to this risk are primarily US Dollars (“USD”) and Euro Dollars
(“Euro”).

The Group hedges at least 80 percent of its trade receivables denominated in foreign currency. At any point
in time, the Group also hedges 80 percent of their estimated foreign currency exposure in respect of forecast
sales over the following six months. Where necessary, the forward exchange contracts are rolled over at
maturity at market rates.

Liquidity risk

The Group manages its liquidity risk by adopting a prudent approach to credit risk and cash flow management.
The Group maintains a sufficient level of cash to meet its working capital requirements. It also has banking
facilities available for its contingent funding requirement for working capital purposes.

Effective interest rates and repricing analysis

In respect of interest-earning financial assets, the following table indicates its effective interest rate at the
balance sheet date and the periods in which it reprices or matures, whichever is earlier.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

26. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Effective
interest rate Within 1 - 5

per annum Total 1 year years
% RM RM RM

Group

2010

Financial assets

Short term funds 1.75 6,219,132 6,219,132 -

Deposits with licensed banks 2.15 22,921,973 22,921,973 -

2009

Financial assets

Short term funds 2.19 6,027,643 6,027,643 -

Deposits with licensed banks 1.72 22,991,651 22,991,651 -

Company

2010

Financial assets

Short term funds 1.75 6,181,823 6,181,823 -

Deposits with licensed banks 2.43 7,603,184 7,603,184 -

2009

Financial assets

Short term funds 2.19 5,991,253 5,991,253 -

Deposits with licensed banks 2.27 6,100,000 6,100,000 -

Fair values

Recognised financial instruments

The carrying amount of cash and cash equivalents, receivables and payables, approximate fair value due to
the relatively short term nature of these financial instruments.

The Company provides financial guarantees to banks for credit facilities extended to certain subsidiaries.
The fair value of such financial guarantees is not expected to be material as the probability of the subsidiaries
defaulting on the credit lines is remote.

Unrecognised financial instruments

The contracted amount and fair value of financial instruments not recognised on the balance sheet as at
31 May are as follows:

2010 2009
Contracted Contracted

value Fair value value Fair value
RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

Forward exchange
to sell US Dollars 11,677 (86) 8,031 353

Forward exchange to buy Euro 403 (28) - -

The fair value of the above forward exchange contracts is based on foreign currency contracts translated
at spot rates at year end. All the above foreign exchange contracts will mature within a year.
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In the opinion of the Directors, the financial statements set out on pages 29 to 65, are drawn up in accordance
with Financial Reporting Standards and the Companies Act, 1965 in Malaysia so as to give a true and fair view of
the financial position of the Group and of the Company at 31 May 2010 and of their financial performance and
cash flows for the year then ended.

Signed on behalf of the Board of Directors in accordance with a resolution of the Directors:

Guan Kok Beng

Guan Shaw Yin

Penang,
Date: 23 August 2010

STATUTORY DECLARATION
PURSUANT TO SECTION 169 (16) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 1965

I, Moy Ean Chung, the officer primarily responsible for the financial management of Eurospan Holdings Berhad,
do solemnly and sincerely declare that the financial statements set out on pages 29 to 65 are, to the best of my
knowledge and belief, correct and I make this solemn declaration conscientiously believing the same to be true,
and by virtue of the provisions of the Statutory Declarations Act, 1960.

Subscribed and solemnly declared by the abovenamed at Georgetown in the State of Penang on 23 August 2010.

Moy Ean Chung

Before me:
Cheah Beng Sun
DJN, AMN, PKT, PJK, PJM, PK
(No. P103)

Commissioner for Oaths

Penang

STATEMENT BY DIRECTORS
PURSUANT TO SECTION 169 (15) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 1965
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REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

We have audited the financial statements of Eurospan Holdings Berhad, which comprise the balance sheets as at
31 May 2010 of the Group and of the Company, and the income statements, statements of changes in equity and
cash flow statements of the Group and of the Company for the year then ended, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory notes, as set out on pages 29 to 65.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with Financial Reporting Standards and the Companies Act, 1965 in Malaysia. This
responsibility includes: designing, implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation and
fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error;
selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in
the circumstances.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our
audit in accordance with approved standards on auditing in Malaysia. Those standards require that we comply with
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial statements
are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on our judgement, including the assessment of risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
we consider internal control relevant to the Company’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness
of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the Directors, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements have been properly drawn up in accordance with Financial Reporting
Standards and the Companies Act, 1965 in Malaysia so as to give a true and fair view of the financial position of
the Group and of the Company as of 31 May 2010 and of their financial performance and cash flows for the year
then ended.

REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS

In accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act, 1965 in Malaysia, we also report the following:

a) In our opinion, the accounting and other records and the registers required by the Act to be kept by the
Company and its subsidiaries have been properly kept in accordance with the provisions of the Act.

b) We are satisfied that the accounts of the subsidiaries that have been consolidated with the Company’s
financial statements are in form and content appropriate and proper for the purposes of the preparation
of the financial statements of the Group and we have received satisfactory information and explanations
required by us for those purposes.

c) Our audit reports on the accounts of the subsidiaries did not contain any qualification or any adverse
comment made under Section 174(3) of the Act.

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE MEMBERS
OF EUROSPAN HOLDINGS BERHAD
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OTHER MATTERS

This report is made solely to the members of the Company, as a body, in accordance with Section 174 of the
Companies Act, 1965 in Malaysia and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility to any other person
for the content of this report.

KPMG Lee Kean Teong
AF 0758 1857/02/12 (J)
Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountant

Date: 23 August 2010

Penang

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE MEMBERS
OF EUROSPAN HOLDINGS BERHAD (CONTINUED)
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ANALYSIS OF SHAREHOLDINGS
AS AT 2 SEPTEMBER 2010

1. Authorised Share Capital : RM50,000,000.00

Issued and Paid-up Share Capital : RM40,462,500.00

Class of shares : Ordinary shares of RM1.00 each

Voting Right : 1 vote per share

2. ANALYSIS BY SIZE OF SHAREHOLDINGS AS AT 2 SEPTEMBER 2010

No. of % of total No. of % of total
Size of shareholdings shareholders shareholders shares issued capital

Less than 100  7 0.37 300 0.00

100 to 1,000 962 50.90 948,600 2.34

1,001 to 10,000 727 38.46 3,061,800 7.57

10,001 to 100,000 162 8.57 4,740,400 11.72

100,001 to less than 5% of issued shares 30 1.59 13,200,200 32.62

5% and above of issued shares 2 0.11 18,511,200 45.75

TOTAL 1,890 100.00 40,462,500 100.00

3. THIRTY LARGEST SECURITIES ACCOUNT HOLDERS  AS AT 2 SEPTEMBER 2010

No. of % of total
Name shares issued capital

1. TBHL Holdings Sdn. Bhd. 12,141,594 30.01

2. TBHL Holdings Sdn. Bhd. 6,369,606 15.74

3. Guan Kok Beng 1,843,300 4.56

4. Guan Kok Beng 1,451,624 3.59

5. Guan Kim Heng 1,084,036 2.68

6. HLB Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn. Bhd. 1,050,000 2.59
(Pledged Securities Account For Koek Tiang Kung)

7. Alliancegroup Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn. Bhd. 950,000 2.35
(Pledged Securities Account For Koek Tiang Kung)

8. HDM Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn. Bhd. 910,764 2.25
(Pledged Securities Account For Ting Hon Sum)

9. Guan Kim Loong 742,576 1.84

10. Stable Level Sdn. Bhd. 498,000 1.23

11. Guan Kok Beng 460,000 1.14

12. Ooi Pey Wong 401,800 0.99

13. Yeoh Kean Hua 380,000 0.94

14. Alliancegroup Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn. Bhd. 337,400 0.83
(Pledged Securities Account For Ng Ah Chai)

15. Mayban Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn. Bhd. 286,000 0.71
(Pledged Securities Account For Ong Kok Thye)

16. Yong Ping 234,000 0.58

17. Esabee Sdn. Bhd. 222,100 0.55

18. Saw Hai Earn 212,000 0.52

19. Hong Siew Siew 200,000 0.49

20. Cheng Mei Fung @ Chirn Mei Fung 195,200 0.48

21. Leong Shang Ming 185,000 0.46

22. Oh Ee Hong 180,000 0.44

23. Chan Beng Teik 179,000 0.44
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ANALYSIS OF SHAREHOLDINGS (CONTINUED)
AS AT 2 SEPTEMBER 2010

3. THIRTY LARGEST SECURITIES ACCOUNT HOLDERS AS AT 2 SEPTEMBER 2010 (Continued)

No. of % of total
Name shares issued capital

24. Lim Yoke Lin 161,000 0.40

25. CIMSEC Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn. Bhd. 160,800 0.40
(CIMB Bank For Ng Ah Chai)

26. Lim Chun Thang 147,000 0.36

27. Lee Keng Fah 146,100 0.36

28. Ong Ju Seng 129,000 0.32

29. Chuah Tiong Hock @ Chua Teong Choo 125,400 0.31

30. Syarikat Lean Hong Chan Sdn. Bhd. 120,000 0.30

4. SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS AS AT 2 SEPTEMBER 2010

Direct interest Deemed interest
No. of % of total No. of % of total

Name shares held issued capital shares held issued capital

1. TBHL Holdings Sdn. Bhd. 18,511,200 45.75 - -

2. Guan Kok Beng 3,754,924 9.28 *18,511,200 45.75

3. Guan Kim Heng 1,113,036 2.75 *18,511,200 45.75

4. Guan Kim Loong 838,576 2.07 *18,511,200 45.75

* Deemed interest by virtue of their substantial shareholdings in TBHL Holdings Sdn. Bhd.

5. INTEREST OF DIRECTORS AS AT 2 SEPTEMBER 2010

a) Interest in shares of the Company

Direct Interest Deemed Interest
No. of % of total No. of % of total

Name shares held issued capital shares held issued capital

Guan Kok Beng 3,754,924 9.28 *18,511,200 45.75

Guan Kim Heng 1,113,036 2.75 *18,511,200 45.75

Guan Kim Loong 838,576 2.07 *18,511,200 45.75

Dato’ Noor Ahmad - - - -
Mokhtar bin Haniff

Diong Chin Teck 15,000 0.04 - -

Guan Shaw Kee 50,000 0.12 - -

Guan Shaw Yin 51,000 0.13 **14,000 0.03

Note:

* Deemed interest by virtue of their substantial shareholdings in TBHL Holdings Sdn. Bhd.

** Interest held by spouse treated as interest of directors in accordance with Section 134(12)(c) of the
Companies Act, 1965

b) Interest  in shares of related corporations

By virtue of their interests of not less than 15% in the shares of the Company, Messrs Guan Kok Beng,
Guan Kim Heng and Guan Kim Loong are also deemed to have interests in the shares of all the subsidiary
companies to the extent that the Company has an interest as at 2 September 2010.

None of the other directors have any interest in the shares of related corporations as at 2 September
2010.
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ANALYSIS OF SHAREHOLDINGS (CONTINUED)
AS AT 2 SEPTEMBER 2010

5. INTEREST OF DIRECTORS AS AT 2 SEPTEMBER 2010 (Continued)

c) Share options granted under the Employees’ Share Option Scheme (“ESOS”) of the
Company

Number of options
over ordinary shares Option Price

Name of RM1.00 each RM

Guan Kok Beng 600,000 1.00

Guan Kim Heng 200,000 1.00

Guan Kim Loong 200,000 1.00

Dato’ Noor Ahmad Mokhtar bin Haniff - -

Diong Chin Teck - -

Guan Shaw Kee 500,000 1.00

Guan Shaw Yin 500,000 1.00
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Total land
area / Net

Approximate approximate book
Date of age of built up area value

Address/Location acquisition Description Use Tenure building (sq. ft.) RM

1 1168 Kampung Teluk, 13-05-1995 3 storey office & Office,  Freehold 12.5 years 62,140/ 3,976,266
Sungai Dua, Kawasan 1 storey factory showroom 62,600
Perusahaan Sungai & factory
Lokan, 13800
Butterworth

2 1169 Kampung Teluk,  7-11-1992 1 storey factory Factory Freehold  *17.5 years 69,589 / 1,639,347
Sungai Dua, Kawasan 40,947
Perusahaan Sungai
Lokan, 13800
Butterworth

3 No 14 & 16, Lorong 27-12-1994 2 storey terrace Store Freehold 13 years 4,368 / 544,348
Perusahaan Sungai light industrial 6,218
Lokan 3, Taman building
Perindustrian Baru
Butterworth, Sungai
Dua, 13800
Butterworth

4 No 15 Lorong Sungai 7-4-1994 2 storey terrace Store Freehold 14 years 1,920 / 223,948
Lokan 3/2, Sungai Dua, light industrial 2,880
13800 Butterworth building

5 Lot 14 Jalan 22-3-1995 1 storey factory Office & Leasehold *14.5 years 86,249 / 1,855,441
Perusahaan, Kawasan factory Expiry: 38,320
Perusahaan Kulim, 2080
09000 Kulim, Kedah

6 No 2 Lorong Bakau 3, 24-4-1996 1 storey factory Office & Freehold 9.5 years 247,420 / 5,622,173
Kawasan Perusahaan factory 152,163
Perabut Sungai Baong,
14200 Sungai Bakap,
Seberang Perai Selatan

7 Plot A9 & A10, 24-4-1996 Industrial land Vacant Freehold 0 238,278 1,556,110
Furniture Village,
Sungai Baong,
Seberang Perai Selatan

8 No 26, Lorong 12-11-2007 2 storey terrace Store Freehold 13 years 2,842 / 353,049
Perusahaan Sungai light industrial 3,919
Lokan 3, Taman building
Perindustrian Baru
Butterworth,
Sungai Dua, 13800
Butterworth

15,770,682

Notes :

The Group does not have a formal revaluation policy for its landed properties

# Freehold lands are stated at cost and are not subject to depreciation
Leasehold lands and buildings are stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses and accumulated depreciation respectively.

* Based on the latest upgrading date of building

LIST OF PROPERTIES OF THE GROUP
AS AT 31 MAY 2010



Date: 1 October 2010

Dear Shareholder,

Re: IMPLEMENTATION OF ELECTRONIC DIVIDEND PAYMENT (“eDividend”)

Electronic Dividend Payment or eDividend refers to the payment of cash dividends by a listed issuer to its
shareholders by directly crediting the shareholders’ cash dividend entitlements into their respective bank accounts.
We are pleased to inform you that all listed issuers who make announcement on or after 1 September 2010 for
a books closing date for cash dividend entitlements are required to pay the cash dividend via eDividend to
shareholders who have provided their bank account information to Bursa Malaysia Depository Sdn Bhd (“Bursa
Depository”).

Shareholders have been able register for eDividend and provide their bank account information to Bursa
Depository (through their authorised depository agents/brokers) from 19 April 2010. Registration for eDividend
commencing for a period of 1 year from 19 April 2010 until 18 April 2011 will be at no cost to the shareholders.
If you register after the 1 year period, an administrative charge will be imposed. Shareholders who have not
provided their bank account information will continue to receive your cash dividend entitlement through the
existing manner i.e. by cheque.

Benefits of eDividend

• Faster access to your cash dividends which would be credited directly into your bank account

• Eliminates the need to go to the bank

• Convenience of one-off registration for entitlement to cash dividend from all listed issuers on Bursa Malaysia
Securities Berhad (“Bursa Malaysia”)

• Better account management with the option to consolidate the dividends from all your Central Depository
System (“CDS”) accounts into one bank account

• Eliminates the problem of misplaced, lost or expired cheques and unauthorized deposit of dividend cheques.

For those shareholders who have previously opted for direct crediting of dividend entitlement via GIRO Service
with the Company, you will still need to register for eDividend.

Registration for eDividend

To register for eDividend you are required to provide to Bursa Depository, through your stock broker, your bank
account number and other information by completing the prescribed form. This form can be obtained from your
stock broker’s office where your CDS account is maintained, or downloaded from Bursa Malaysia’s website:
http://www.bursamalaysia.com

You need to submit to your stock broker’s office where your CDS account is maintained, the duly completed
prescribed form and the following for registration:-

(a) Individual depositor: Copy of identification documents i.e. NRIC, Passport, Authority Card or other acceptable
identification documents. Original documents must be produced for your stock broker’s verification;

Corporate depositor: Certified true copy of the Certificate of Incorporation / Certificate of Registration;
and

(b) Copy of your bank statement / bank savings book / details of your bank account obtained from your banks
website that has been certified by your bank / copy of letter from your bank confirming your bank account
particulars. For individuals, original documents must be produced for your stock broker’s verification. For
corporate entities, a certified true copy is to be submitted.

EUROSPAN HOLDINGS BERHAD (351927-M)
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If the CDS account is held in the name of a nominee, the nominee will register for the eDividend.

If you are not able to be present at your stock broker’s office to submit the prescribed form and supporting
documents, please ensure that the signing of the prescribed form and the supporting documents have been
witnessed by an acceptable witness specified by Bursa Depository. In this regard, an acceptable witness includes
an Authorised Officer of your stock broker, a Dealer’s Representative, a notary public and an Authorised Officer
of the Malaysian Embassy/High Commission.

Notification of eDividend payment after registration

You are encouraged to provide in the prescribed form to Bursa Depository both your mobile phone number and
e-mail address, if any. This is to enable the Company to issue electronic notification to you either via e-mail or
SMS, at the discretion of the Company, once the Company has paid the cash dividend out of its account. Please
note that if you provide only your mobile phone number, you may only be notified of the cash dividend payment
when you receive your dividend warrant or tax certificate.

Additional information for shareholders

Your savings or current account, must be an active bank account, maintained with a local bank under your name
or in the case of a joint account, has your name as one of the account holders. Your account must also be a bank
account with a financial institution that is a member of the Malaysian Electronic Payment System Inter-Bank GIRO
(IBG) which are currently as set out below. For an up to date listing you are advised to visit this website:
http://www.meps.com.my/faq/interbank_giro.asp?id=2# answer

1. Affin Bank Berhad

2. Alliance Bank Malaysia Berhad

3. AmBank (M) Berhad

4. Bank Islam Malaysia Berhad

5. Bank Muamalat Malaysia Berhad

6. Bank Kerjasama Rakyat Malaysia Berhad

7. Bank of America

8. Bank Simpanan Nasional

9. CIMB Bank Berhad

10. Citibank Berhad

11. Deutsche Bank Berhad

12. EON Bank Berhad

13. Hong Leong Bank Berhad

14. HSBC Bank Malaysia Berhad

15. J.P. Morgan Chase Bank Berhad

16. Kuwait Finance House (Malaysia) Berhad

17. Malayan Banking Berhad

18. OCBC Bank (Malaysia) Berhad

19. Public Bank Berhad

20. RHB Bank Berhad

EUROSPAN HOLDINGS BERHAD (351927-M)
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21. Standard Chartered Bank Malaysia Berhad

22. The Royal Bank of Scotland Berhad

23. United Overseas Bank (Malaysia) Bhd

We look forward to a successful implementation of eDividend through your active participation.

For further information, please refer to Bursa Malaysia’s website:
www.bursamalaysia.com/website/bm/trading/edividend.html

Thank you.

Yours faithfully,
Guan Kok Beng
Managing Director

EUROSPAN HOLDINGS BERHAD (351927-M)
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AS ORDINARY BUSINESSES

1. To receive and adopt the Audited Financial Statements for the financial year ended 31 May
2010 together with the Reports of the Directors and Auditors thereon.

2. To declare a First and Final Single Tier Dividend of 8 sen per ordinary share for the financial
year ended 31 May 2010.

3. To approve the payment of Directors’ fees of RM240,000.00 for the financial year ended
31 May 2010.

4. To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following resolutions as Ordinary Resolutions:-

(a) “THAT Mr Diong Chin Teck, retiring pursuant to Section 129 of the Companies Act,
1965, be and is hereby re-appointed as a Director of the Company to hold office until
the next Annual General Meeting.”

(b) “THAT Dato’ Noor Ahmad Mokhtar Bin Haniff, retiring pursuant to Section 129 of the
Companies Act, 1965, be and is hereby re-appointed as a Director of the Company to
hold office until the next Annual General Meeting.”

5. To re-elect Mr Guan Kim Loong who retires in accordance with Article 126 of the Company’s
Articles of Association and being eligible, offer himself for re-election.

6. To re-appoint Messrs KPMG as Auditors of the Company for the ensuing year and to
authorise the Directors to fix their remuneration.

AS SPECIAL BUSINESSES

7. To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following resolutions as Ordinary Resolutions:-

Authority to Issue Shares

“THAT pursuant to Section 132D of the Companies Act, 1965, and subject to the approvals
of the relevant Governmental and/or regulatory authorities, the Directors be and are hereby
empowered to issue shares in the Company from time to time upon such terms and
conditions and for such purposes and to such person or persons as the Directors may
deem fit provided that the aggregate number of shares issued pursuant to this resolution
does not exceed ten percent (10%) of the total issued share capital of the Company for
the time being and that the Directors be and are also empowered to obtain the approval
from Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad for the listing of and quotation for the additional
shares so issued and that such authority shall continue to be in force until the conclusion
of the next Annual General Meeting of the Company or the expiration of the period within
which the next Annual General Meeting is required by law to be held or revoked/varied
by resolution passed by the shareholders in general meeting whichever is the earlier.”

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT the Fifteenth Annual General Meeting of  Eurospan Holdings Berhad will be
held at Enggang Room, Ground Floor, Hotel Equatorial, No. 1, Jalan Bukit Jambul, 11900 Bayan Lepas, Penang on
Monday, 25 October 2010 at 11.30 a.m. for the following purposes:

Resolution 1

Resolution 2

Resolution 3

Resolution 4

Resolution 5

Resolution 6

Resolution 7

Resolution 8
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING



Proposed Renewal of Share Buy-Back Authority

“THAT, subject to the Companies Act, 1965 (“the Act”), rules, regulations and orders made
pursuant to the Act, provisions of the Company’s Memorandum and Articles of Association,
the Listing Requirements of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad (“Bursa Securities”) and any other
relevant authorities, the Company be and is hereby authorised to purchase such amount of
ordinary shares of RM1.00 each (“Shares”) in the Company as may be determined by the
Directors of the Company from time to time through Bursa Securities upon such terms and
conditions as the Directors of the Company may deem fit and expedient in the interest of the
Company (“Share Buy-Back Authority”) provided that:-

(a) The aggregate number of Shares in the Company which may be purchased and/or held by
the Company shall not exceed ten percent (10%) of the issued and paid-up share capital
of the Company at any point in time subject to compliance with the public shareholding
spread requirements as stipulated in Paragraph 8.02 of the Listing Requirements of Bursa
Securities;

(b) The maximum funds to be allocated by the Company for the purpose of purchasing the
Shares shall not exceed the Company’s audited retained earnings and share premium
accounts at any point in time;

(c) The authority conferred by this resolution will commence immediately upon passing of this
ordinary resolution and will continue to be in force until:-

(i) The conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) at which time it shall
lapse unless by ordinary resolution passed at the meeting, the authority is renewed,
either unconditionally or subject to conditions; or

(ii) The expiration of the period within which the next AGM after that date is required
by law to be held; or

(iii) Revoked or varied by ordinary resolution passed by the shareholders of the Company
in a general meeting;

whichever occurs first; and

(d) Upon completion of the purchase(s) of the Shares by the Company, the Directors of the
Company be and are hereby authorised to retain the Shares so purchased as treasury shares
for distribution as dividends to the shareholders of the Company and/or resale on Bursa
Securities in accordance with the relevant rules of Bursa Securities, or to retain part of the
Shares so purchased as treasury shares and cancel the remainder in any other manner as
prescribed by the Act, rules, regulations and orders made pursuant to the Act and the Listing
Requirements of Bursa Securities and any other relevant authorities for the time being in
force;

AND THAT the Directors of the Company be and are hereby authorised to take all such steps
as they may consider necessary or expedient to implement and give effect to the Share Buy-
Back Authority.”

8. To consider any other business for which due notice shall have been given in accordance
with the Companies Act, 1965.

Resolution 9

A
N

N
U

A
L 

R
EP

O
R

T 
2

0
1

0

77

EU
R

O
S

P
A

N
 H

O
LD

IN
G

S
 B

ER
H

A
D

 (
3

5
1

9
2

7
-M

)

NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING (CONTINUED)



NOTICE OF DIVIDEND ENTITLEMENT

NOTICE IS ALSO HEREBY GIVEN that subject to the approval of the shareholders at the Fifteenth Annual General
Meeting, a First and Final Single Tier Dividend of 8 sen per ordinary share in respect of the financial year ended
31 May 2010 will be paid on 6 December 2010 to depositors registered in the Records of Depositors on 15
November 2010.

A depositor shall qualify for entitlement only in respect of:

(a) Shares transferred into the depositor’s securities account before 4.00 p.m. on 15 November 2010 in respect
of  transfers;

(b) Shares bought on Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad on a cum entitlement basis according to the Rules of Bursa
Malaysia Securities Berhad.

By order of the Board

Lim Kim Teck
(MAICSA 7010844)

Secretary

Penang
Date: 1 October 2010

NOTES

1. Appointment of Proxy

a) A proxy may but need not be a member of the Company and the provisions of Section 149(1)(b) of the Companies Act, 1965 shall
not apply to the Company.

b) To be valid the proxy form must be duly completed and deposited at the registered office of the Company, 35, 1st Floor, Jalan Kelisa
Emas 1, Taman Kelisa Emas, 13700 Seberang Jaya, Penang not less than forty-eight (48) hours before the time for holding the meeting.

c) A member may appoint more than two (2) proxies to attend and vote at the same meeting.

d) Where a member appoints two (2) proxies or more, the appointments shall be invalid unless he specifies the proportions of his
holdings to be represented by each proxy.

e) If the appointer is a corporation, the proxy form must be executed under its Common Seal or under the hand of its attorney.

2. Explanatory Note on Special Businesses

Ordinary Resolution 8

The proposed Ordinary Resolution if passed will empower the Directors of the Company to issue and allot shares up to 10% of the
issued and paid-up share capital of the Company from time to time. This authority will, unless revoked or varied by the Company in general
meeting, expire at the conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting of the Company or the period within which the next Annual General
Meeting of the Company is required by law to be held whichever is the earlier.

As at the date of this notice no shares  have been issued pursuant to the mandate granted to the Directors at the last Annual General
Meeting held on 26 October 2009 and which will lapse at the conclusion of the Fifteenth Annual General Meeting.  

The Directors seek a renewal of the mandate to provide flexibility to the Company for possible raising of funds, including but not limited
to further placing of shares, for purpose of additional working capital, funding of investments and/or acquisitions.

Ordinary Resolution 9

The Ordinary Resolution if passed will authorise the Company to purchase up to 10% of the issued and paid-up share capital of the
Company. This authority will, unless revoked or varied by the Company in general meeting, expire at the conclusion of the next Annual
General Meeting of the Company or the period within which the next Annual General Meeting of the Company is required by law to
be held whichever is the earlier.
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I/We

of

being a member/members of the above Company appoint

of

or failing him,

of

as my/our Proxy to vote in my/our name(s) on my/our behalf at the Fifteenth Annual General Meeting of the
Company to be held on Monday, 25 October, 2010 at 11.30 a.m. and at any adjournment thereof in the manner
indicated below:-

Resolution For Against

To receive and adopt the Audited Financial Statements for the financial year Resolution 1
ended 31 May 2010 together with the Reports of the Directors and Auditors
thereon

To declare a First and Final Single Tier Dividend of 8 sen per ordinary share Resolution 2
for the financial year ended 31 May 2010

To approve the payment of Directors’ fees of RM240,000.00 for the financial Resolution 3
year ended 31 May 2010

To re-appoint Mr Diong Chin Teck, who retires pursuant to Section 129 Resolution 4
of the Companies Act, 1965 as a Director

To re-appoint Dato’ Noor Ahmad Mokhtar bin Haniff, who retires pursuant Resolution 5
to Section 129 of the Companies Act, 1965 as a Director

To re-elect Mr Guan Kim Loong who retires in accordance with Article Resolution 6
126 of the Company’s Articles of Association as a Director

To re-appoint Messrs KPMG as the Company’s Auditors Resolution 7

To empower the Directors to issue and allot shares up to 10% of the issued Resolution 8
share capital of the Company

To renew the authority to purchase up to 10% of the issued and paid-up Resolution 9
share capital of the Company

(Please indicate with an “X” in the appropriate box against each Resolution how you wish your proxy to vote. If
no instruction is given, this form will be taken to authorise the proxy to vote at his/her discretion.)

Dated this day of 2010.

Signature of Shareholder

Notes:

(a) A proxy may but need not be a member of the Company and the provisions of Section 149(1)(b) of the Companies Act, 1965 shall not
apply to the Company.

(b) To be valid the proxy form must be duly completed and deposited at the registered office of the Company, 35, 1st Floor, Jalan Kelisa Emas
1, Taman Kelisa Emas, 13700 Seberang Jaya, Penang not less than forty-eight (48) hours before the time for holding the meeting.

(c) A member may appoint more than two (2) proxies to attend and vote at the same meeting.

(d) Where a member appoints two (2) proxies or more, the appointments shall be invalid unless he specifies the proportions of his holdings
to be represented by each proxy.

(e) If the appointor is a corporation, the proxy form must be executed under its Common Seal or under the hand of its attorney.

EUROSPAN HOLDINGS BERHAD (351927-M)
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

P R O X Y  F O R M
for the 15th Annual General Meeting

No. of shares held

(Full Name in Block Letters)

(Address)

(Full Name in Block Letters)

(Address)

(Full Name in Block Letters)

(Address)



The Company Secretary

EUROSPAN HOLDINGS BERHAD (351927-M)

35, 1st Floor,

Jalan Kelisa Emas 1,

Taman Kelisa Emas,

13700 Seberang Jaya,

Penang, Malaysia.
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1168, Kampung Teluk, Sungai Dua, Kawasan Perusahaan Sungai Lokan,
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